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EPS and Dividend figures of FY 2017-18 are based on 10 Crore Equity Shares i.e. After issue of Bonus Shares in ratio of 1:1 on
July 13,2017.

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
Equity Share Capital 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 2,000
Reserves & Surplus 17,634 19,694 20,869 24,287 26,265
Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets) 657 779 - - -
Secured Loans 7,697 7,824 6,215 4,353 2,868
Total External Liability 12,937 12,548 12,382 13,182 17,035
Total Assets 39,925 41,845 40,465 42,822 48,168
Sales 89,192 97,278 97,163 93,536 106,087
YoY Growth 13.44% 9.07% -0.12% -3.73% 13.42%
Profit Before Depreciation,
Interest & Tax (PBDIT) 6,785 7,276 4,931 6,679 7,692
Interest 601 863 794 550 433
Depreciation 1,245 1,483 1,666 1,720 1,819
Profit Before Tax 4,939 4,929 2,471 4,409 5,441
Profit After Tax 4,766 3,803 2,008 3,455 4,159
Earning Per Share ( ) 9.53 7.61 4.02 6.92 4.16
Dividend 125% 125% 70% 100% 60%

`

( In Lacs)`

2017-182016-172015-162014-152013-142017-182016-172015-162014-152013-14

( )`
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Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present 33 Annual Report togetherrd

with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2018.

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

2018 is summarized below: -
( in Lacs)`

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31,

2018 2017
106,087.07Total Income 935,35.88

76,92.46Profit before Finance Cost & Depreciation 66,79.28
(18,18.70)Depreciation (17,19.62)

(4,32.73)Finance Cost (5,50.42)
54,41.03Profit before Taxation 44,09.24

(12,82.00)Provision for Taxation (Deferred&Current) (9,53.88)
41,59.03Profit after Taxation 34,55.36

242,86.77Surplus brought Forward 208,69.88
262,64.96Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 242,86.77

DIVIDEND

Your Directors have pleasure to recommend a dividend of 60% i.e.
1.20/- on equity share of 2/- each for the financial year ended` `

March 31, 2018. The dividend, if approved by the members in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, would absorb 1,200 lacs`
( 1,000 lacs for Final Dividend for FY 16-17) out of the distributable`
profits available.

During FY 2017-18, total income of the Company was 1,061 Crore

PERFORMANCE

`
as compared to 935 Crore in FY 2016-17, registering an increase`
of 13.48%.

Profit before tax and profit after tax were 54.41 Crores and 41.59` `
Crores respectively during the year as against 44.09 Crores and

34.55 Crores respectively in the previous year.

All four units of the Company located at Waghodia in Gujarat, Bawal

`
`

CAPACITY UTILIZATION & PLANT OPERATIONS

as well as Dharuhera in Haryana and Haridwar in Uttarakhand are
running well and continue to operate at a satisfactory level of
efficiency.

BOARD’S REPORT
INCREASE IN SHARE CAPITAL CONSEQUENT TO ISSUE OF
BONUS SHARE

In pursuit of approval granted by the members of the Company at
their 32 Annual General Meeting held on June 30, 2017, Committeend

of Board of Directors at their meeting held on July 13, 2017 had
allotted one Bonus Equity Share of 2/- each fully paid up for every`
one Equity Share of 2/- each fully paid up as on the record date`
July 12, 2017 aggregating to 5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of
10,00,00,000 to the members of the Company. Accordingly, the paid

`

up capital increased from 10,00,00,000 to 20,00,00,000 on July` `
13, 2017.

In terms of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the

APPOINTMENT/ CESSATION OF DIRECTORS OR KMP

Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal retires by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible
offers himself for reappointment.

Your Board recommends reappointment of Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal,
as Director as well as the Managing Directorforthe period of five years
at the ensuing 33 Annual General Meeting in terms of Sectionrd

152,196,197 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Act.He, in
the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
Board, fulfills the conditions for reappointment specified in the Act and
rules made there under.

It is also proposed to seek approval of the members by way of
Special Resolution at their ensuing 33 Annual General Meeting to therd

reappointment of and remuneration payable to Mr. Sudhir Kumar
Munjal as a Managing Director of the Company for the period of 5
years from October 29, 2018 to October 28, 2023.

Brief resume and other details of Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal, who is
proposed to be re-appointed as a Director of your Company, have
been furnished in the Explanatory Statement to the Notice of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of theAct and Regulation 17 (10)

BOARD EVALUATION

and other applicable regulations, if any, of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘LODR’),
performance of the Board as a whole and individual Directors, was
evaluated by the Board seeking relevant inputs from all the Directors.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) reviewed the
performance of the individual Directors. A separate meeting of
IndependentDirectorswasalsoheld to review theperformanceofNon-
Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole and
performance of the Chairperson of the Company.
The performance of the Board and individual Directors was found
satisfactory.
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QUALITY

Your Company is focusing on quality, right from new product

MUNJAL AUTO

development stage such as design of processes, manufacturing of
tools, fixtures & dies, to ensure quality output. This is the attribute of
your Company which has enabled it to sustain as a consistent quality
producer over the years.

Your Company continued to focus on operational improvement.

FINANCE

Continuing focus on managing optimal levels of inventory, sound
business performance, operating efficiencies in various segments of
business and cost saving drive across the organization have helped
it generating good cash flow from operations, notwithstanding
headwinds blowing in automobile sector and sluggish macro-economic
environment throughout the year.

Your Company was able to raise the short-term/long term funds
needed for its working capital related requirements & term loans for
new capital expenditure at competitive rates. Your Company continues
to enjoy excellent credit ratings for both long and short tenure borrowings
and maintains impeccable debt-servicing track record, which helps
it retain excellent rapport with all of its bankers.

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

corporate governance and adheres to the corporate governance
requirements set out by SEBI. The report on Corporate Governance
as stipulated under the LODR forms an integral part of this report. The
requisite certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming
compliance with the conditions of corporate governance is attached
to the report on Corporate Governance.

During the FY under review, no amount has been transferred to

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE

General Reserve of the Company.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

During the FY under review, your Company has transferred unpaid/
unclaimed dividend amounting to 6.59 Lacs for FY 2009-10 to the`
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) of the Central
Government of India.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (‘CSR Committee’)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

has formulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy (‘CSR Policy’) indicating the activities to be
undertaken by the Company, which has been approved by the
Board.

The amount required to be spent on CSR activities during the year
under report in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the

Act was 76.54 lacs and the Company has spent 70.00 lacs` `
during the current financial year.

The Company was in a process to recognize the appropriate CSR
project for spending on the CSR expenditure to contribute towards the
society and hence the Company could spend only to the extent of
70 lacs and could not spend 6.54 lacs out of 76.54 lacs to be

`
` `

spent towards CSR expenditure.

The requisite details (in a matrix form) on CSR activities pursuant to
Section 135 of the Act read with Companies (CSR Policy) Rules,
2014 are annexed as to this Report.Annexure A

POLICY RELATING TO ANTI SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has placed a policy to treat women employees with
dignity and no discrimination against them plus zero tolerance towards
any sexual abuse to abide by letter and spirit requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules framed there under
and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at work place.
All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) are
supposed to adhere to, and conduct themselves as prescribed in this
policy. During the year under review, no complaint was reported to
the Board and accordingly the Company has no information to report
on filing and disposal of the cases pursuant to Section 22 of the said
Act.

Your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits

DEPOSITS

within the meaning of Section 73 of the Act read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, SECURITIES AND
INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any guarantees or securities within the
meaning of the provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

However, the aggregate of loans and advances granted, as also
investments made, if any are within the limits of Section 186 of the
Act.

STATEMENT ON THE DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO SECTION 149(6) OF THE ACT

The Company has received declaration from all independent Directors
of the Company to the effect that they meet criteria of independence
as stipulated u/s 149(6) of the Act and applicable regulations of
LODR.

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

would like to state that:
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a) In the preparation of the annual accounts financial year ended
March 31, 2018, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures; if any

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018
and of the profit and loss of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2018 under review;

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial
year ended March 31, 2018 on a going concern basis;

e) The Directors, have laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) The Directors have devised proper system to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SECTION 188 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no related party transactions entered into during the
financial year under Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013.

Further, during FY 2017-18, there were no materially significant
related party transactions entered into by your Company with the
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated
persons which might have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large.

HOLDING / SUBSIDIAY / ASSOCIATE / JOINT VENTURE
COMPANY

Thakur Devi Investments Private Limited is a holding company of the
Company, holding 74.81% Equity Share Capital of the Company. The
Company will make relevant disclosure during the year in case of
change in the current status, if any.

Subsequent to the end of Balance sheet date as at March 31, 2018,
the Company has acquired 55% shareholding of Indutch composites
Technology Pvt. Ltd. of face value of 10/- each for a consideration`
of 5.20 Cr. By virtue of this investment, Indutch Composites`
Technology Pvt Ltd has become a subsidiary of the Company.

During the year, The Board has accepted all recommendations of

AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

Audit Committee and accordingly no disclosure is required to be
made in respect of non-acceptance of any recommendation of the
Audit Committee by the Board.

The Corporate Governance Policy guides the conduct of the affairs
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

of your Company and clearly delineates the roles, responsibilities at
each level of its key functionaries involved in governance. Your
Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements. During the year under review,
no reportable material weakness in the operation was observed.
Regular audit and review processes ensure that such systems are
reinforced on an ongoing basis.

Your Company’s assets are adequately insured against multiple
INSURANCE

risks from fire, riot, earthquake, terrorism and other risks, which are
considered necessary by the Management.
As an additional coverage, a Public Liability Insurance Policy is also
in place to cover public liability/ties, if any, arising out of any industrial
accidents. We have also covered, the Directors’ and Officers’ liability
under the Companies Act to meet with any eventuality.

ICRA, the rating agency has reaffirmed AA- with stable outlook for
RATINGS FOR BORROWING

the long term ratings for bank facilities and A1+ the short term rating
for short term bank facilities and commercial paper of your Company
vide letter dated July 05, 2017. The aforesaid rating are valid till June
30, 2018.
AUDITORS
(i) Statutory Auditors

The auditors, K.C. Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants,
retire at the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting.
They have furnished their consent and requisite certificate
pursuant to the Act and rules mentioned there under in respect
of their proposed reappointment pursuant to Section 139 of the
Act for upcoming financial year 2018-19 & onwards.

M/s Mukund & Rohit, Chartered Accountants, Vadodara, have
(ii) Internal Auditors

been appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company in terms
of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules and
regulations, made thereunder, for the Financial Year 2018-19 by
the Board of Directors, upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Act, and The
(iii) Secretarial Auditors

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company has appointed M/s Devesh
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Vimal & Co., Company Secretaries in practice to undertake the

MUNJAL AUTO

SecretarialAudit of the Company for FY 2018-19. The Secretarial
Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 is
annexed herewith marked as to this Report. TheAnnexure C
Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

EXPLANATIONS/COMMENTS ON STATUTORY AUDITORS’
REPORT & SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT
Neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial Auditors of the
Company, in their respective reports, have made any qualifications,
reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers. Accordingly, no
explanations/ comments thereon are required to be furnished.

The composition of the Audit Committee is in line with the provisions
AUDIT COMMITTEE

of Section 177 of the Act read with Regulation 18 of LODR. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director. The
Audit Committee of the Board provides reassurance to the Board on
the existence of an effective internal control environment that ensures
the efficiency and effectiveness of the operations of the Company and
safeguarding of assets and adequacy of provisions for all liabilities.
The details of meetings and their attendance are included in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

(NRC) is in line with the Section 178 of the Act read with Regulation
19 of LODR. The committee determines overall Company’s Policy
on remuneration packages and other terms and conditions of the
appointment of the Executive Directors and senior management of
the Company as well as sitting fees to the Non Executive Directors
of the Company and also to approve payment of remuneration to
Managing Director and Whole Time Directors as decided by the
members of the Company and recommends to the Board of Directors
for their consideration and approval. The details of meetings and their
attendance are included in the Corporate Governance Report.

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC)
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

is in line with the Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of LODR.
The Committee looks after the stakeholder’s grievances and redress
of investor’s complaints related to transfer of shares, non receipt of
balance sheet, non receipt of dividend etc. The details of meetings
and their attendance are included in Corporate Governance Report.

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Statutory
REPORTING OF FRAUDS

Auditors under Section 143(12) of theAct and rules framed thereunder
either to the Company or to the Central Government.

The extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 annexed to this
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

report as .

The Company has laid down a comprehensive Code of Conduct

Annexure B

CODE OF CONDUCT

(‘Code’) for the Board and senior management personnel of the
Company.

The Company has received affirmations from Board members as
well as senior management confirming their compliance with the said
Code for FY 2017-18.

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct
which is expected to be followed by the Directors and the designated
employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters
relating to integrity in the work place in business practices and dealing
with stakeholders.

The Company has a vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy to deal

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. In staying true to
our values of strength, performance and passion and in line with our
vision of being one of the most respected companies in India, the
Company is committed to the high standards of Corporate Governance
and stakeholder’s responsibility.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Insider Trading pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition & Insider Trading)
Regulation, 2015 with a view to regulate trading in securities by the
Directors and designated employees of the Company.

The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s
shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by
the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company
and during the period when the ‘Trading Window’ is closed. The
Board is responsible for implementation of the code. All Directors and
the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the code.

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the financial

BOARD MEETINGS

year 2017-18. Details of the composition of the Board and its
committees and of the meeting held, attendance of the Directors of
such meeting and other relevant details are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The composition of the Risk Management Committee is not applicable

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

to your Company. However, the Company has adopted a Risk
Management policy in accordance with the provisions of the Act and
Regulation 17 (9) of LODR. It establishes various levels of
accountability and overview within the Company, while vesting identified
managers with responsibility for each significant risk.



6

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS IMPACTING
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS/ COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

No significant, material orders have been passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status of the
Company or Company’s operations in future.

THE INFORMATION REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 197
READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)
RULES, 2014 IN RESPECT OF EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY.

Remuneration of KMP and sitting fees paid to Independent Directors
are provided in i.e. Extract of Annual Return Form No.Annexure B
MGT- 9. There was no employee of the Company except Executive
Directors, employed through out the year, who was in receipt of the
remuneration exceeding 1.02 Crore per annum.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under

`

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

review as stipulated under Regulation 34 (2)(e) of LODR is enclosed
as and forms part of this report.

Industrial relations have remained cordial throughout the year in the

Annexure E

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Company at all of its units.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH, SAFETY AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company is committed in maintaining the highest standards of
environment compliances and therefore adopted a systematic
approach towards environment management by embedding a vision
of being an ’Injury Free’ and ‘Zero Environment Incident’ organisation.
Over the past many years, your Company has been progressing
well in terms of reducing injury frequency rates and has improved
the safety records.

Your Company is environment-conscious and committed to making
a positive contribution to the communities where it operates. The
Company has been proactively pursuing measures and reaching out
to the communities surrounding the areas of its operations by extending
support and lending a helping hand to some very credible social
institutions that are committed to address social causes.

Your Company has been certified for Occupation, Health and Safety
(OHSAS) 18001:2007 from Bureau Veritas during FY 2016-17, which
is valid for upto 01 May, 2019.st

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY / TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AS WELL AS FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company, thanks to its collaborations and outward looking
approach, is constantly absorbing new technology. This is contributing
towards both, improving the manufacturing process and improving

our reputation with our customers as we bring technology in our
products.

Information in respect of Conservation of energy & foreign exchange
earnings and outgo is enclosed in Annexure F.

COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and
appointment of Directors, senior management and their remuneration.

The requisite details as required under Section 134 (3)(e) and Section
178(3) & (4) of the Act are annexed as to this report.Annexure G

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY, IF ANY, DURING
THE PERIOD FROM MARCH 31, 2018 TO THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

There has been no material change/ commitment affecting the financial
position of the Company during the period from the end of the financial
year on March 31, 2018 to the date of the Report.

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCES OF APPLICABLE
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

In terms of clause no. 9 of revised SS-1 (Revised Secretarial
Standards on Meetings of Board of Directors effective from
01.10.2017), your Directors state that the Company has been compliant
to applicable Secretarial Standards during the year under review.

The Board of Directors express their sincere thanks to all of its

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Stakeholders, including, inter alia, Suppliers, Vendors, Investors and
Bankers and appreciation to all its customers for their consistent,
abiding support throughout the year.

Your Company also records its appreciation of the contributions
made by employees at all levels. Their commitment, cooperation and
support are indeed the backbone of all endeavors of the Company.

The Company would like to acknowledge Government of India,
Customs and Excise Departments, Income Tax Department, Industrial
& Labour Departments, Government of Gujarat, Government of
Haryana, Government of Uttarakhand and other government agencies
for the support; the Company has been receiving over the years and
is looking forward to their continued support/guidance in times to
come.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Munjal Auto Industries Limited

Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Date : May 28,2018 Chairman & Managing Director
Place : Waghodia, Vadodara DIN : 00084080
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ANNEXURE A TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

MUNJAL AUTO

Annual Report on CSR Initiatives
1. Abrief outline of theCompany’s CSR policy, includingoverview of projects or programmes undertaken anda reference to the web-link to the

CSR policy and projects or programmes.
The Company has framed a CSR policy in compliance with the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and the same is available on the web
link http://www.munjalauto.com/pdf/CSR%20Policy..pdf.The CSR policy, inter alia, coversthe concept (CSRphilosophy, snapshot ofactivities
undertaken by the Company and applicability, scope (area/localities to be covered and activities), resources, identification and approval
process (resources/fund allocation, identification processandapproval process)modalities of executionand implementationand monitoring.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:
Mr. Vikram Shah, Chairman
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla, Member
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal, Member
Mrs. Anju Munjal, Member
Mr. Anuj Munjal, Member

3. Averagenet profit of the company for last three financial years: 38.27 Crore`

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): 76.54 Lacs`

5. DetailsofCSRspent during the financial year:
a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: 76.54 Lacs`
b) Amount spent: 70.00 Lacs`
c) Amount unspent: 6.54 Lacs`
d) Manner inwhich theamount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
S. CSR Project or Sector in Projects or programs Amount Amount spent Cumulative Amount spent:
No. Activity identified which the (1) Local area or outlay on the projects expenditure Direct or through

project is other (budget) or programs upto the implem enting
covered (2) Specify the state project sub-heads reporting agency*

and district where o r (1) Direct Expenditure period
projects or programs programs on projects or ( )`
was undertaken wise programm es

( )` (2) Overheads ( )`

1 Promoting education Education and Vadodara, Gujarat 2,00,000 2,00,000 2,00,000 Agency:Akshar Trust
for impaired/disabled employment Vadodara , Gujarat

2 Old age home to look Health Care New Delhi 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000 Agency: The Earth
after homeless - Saviours Foundation,
abandoned senior New Delhi
citizens

3 Special Education, Education and Vadodara, Gujarat 12,00,000 12,00,000 12,00,000 Agency: Disha
medical intervention Health care Charitable Trust,
including preventive Vadodara, Gujarat
health care in
Disability/Social Sector

4 Health improvement Health Care Sabar Kaantha, 39,00,000 39,00,000 39,00,000 Agency :Vaanprastha
Gujarat Saadhak Aashram,

Sabar Kaantha, Gujarat

5 Promoting education Education Kutch Gandhidham, 7,00,000 7,00,000 7,00,000 Agency-Arya Samaj
to orphans Gujarat Gandhi Dham, Kutch,

Gandhidham, Gujarat

6 Assistance to be paid Chief Minister India 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000 Agency: Revenue
in case of accidents of Gujarat Department,
taking place in or Relief Fund Government of India.
outside State & related
matters

Total 70,00,000 70,00,000 70,00,000

http://www.munjalauto.com/pdf/CSR%20Policy..pdf.
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6. The Company was in a process to recognize the appropriate CSR project for spending on the CSR expenditure to contribute towards the
society and hence the Company could spend only to the extent of 70 lacs and could not spend 6.54 lacs out of 76.54 lacs to be spent` ` `
towards CSR expenditure.

7. Responsibility Statement
CSRcommittee confirms that the implementationandmonitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSRobjectives and policy of the
Company.

Place : Waghodia, Vadodara Vikram Shah Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Date : May 28,2018 Chairman-CSRCommittee Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00007914 DIN : 00084080
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MUNJAL AUTO
ANNEXURE B TO BOARD’S REPORT

FORM NO. MGT.9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2018
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration)

Rules, 2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN : L34100GJ1985PLC007958
ii) Registration Date : 12-07-1985
iii) Name of the Company : Munjal Auto Industries Limited
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Company Limited by shares
v) Address of the Registered office and : 187, GIDC Industrial Estate, Waghodia, Vadodara - 391760

contact details Tel. No. (02668) 262421-22, Fax No. (02668) 262427
vi) Whether listed Company Yes / No : Yes
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar : MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited,

and Transfer Agent, if any 1 Floor, Neelam Apartment,88, Sampatrao Colony,st

Above Chappanbhog Sweet, Alkapuri, Vadodara- 390 007
Tel.: (0265) 2314757; Fax: (0265) 2341639
E-mail: mcsltdbaroda@gmail.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Sl. Name and Description of main products / services
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

NIC Code of the % to total turn over
No. Product / service of the Company
1 Manufacture of Diverse Parts And Accessories For Motor Vehicles 29301 93%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S. Name and Address of the Company CIN HOLDING/ % of Applicable
No ASSOCIATE shares held Section

1 Thakurdevi Investments Private Limited, U65921PB1979PTC004044 Holding Company 74.81% 2(87)(ii)
Hero Nagar, G. T. Road, Ludhiana-141003

i)
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category-wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the %
Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year Change

(As on 31-March-2017) (As on 31-March-2018) during
Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of the

Total Total year
Shares Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF - - - - - - - - -
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp. 3,74,03,225 - 3,74,03,225 74.81 7,48,06,450 - 7,48,06,450 74.81 0.00
e) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -
f) Any Other.. - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (1):- 3,74,03,225 - 3,74,03,225 74.81 7,48,06,450 - 7,48,06,450 74.81 0.00

mailto:mcsltdbaroda@gmail.com
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Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the %
Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year Change

(As on 31-March-2017) (As on 31-March-2018) during
Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of the

Total Total year
Shares Shares

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
b) Other - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
e) Any Other.... - - - - - - - - -

-Sub-total (A) (2):- - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding 3,74,03,225 - 3,74,03,225 74.81 7,48,06,450 - 7,48,06,450 74.81 -
shareholding of Promoter
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 24,828 500 25,328 0.05 51,511 1,000 52,511 0.05 -
b) Banks/FI 14,436 24,955 39,391 0.08 20,155 48,910 69,065 0.07 -
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
f) Insurance Companies - - - - 29,783 - 29,783 0.03 0.03
g) FIIs / FPIs - - - - - - - - -
h) Foreign Venture - - - - - - - - -

Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1):- 39,264 25,455 64,719 0.13 1,01,449 49,910 1,51,359 0.15 -
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 12,01,951 29,500 12,31,451 2.46 23,88,932 50,000 24,38,932 2.44 -0.02
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders 80,42,760 12,62,815 93,05,575 18.61 1,57,14,992 18,37,762 1,75,52,754 17.55 -1.06

holding nominal share
capital upto 1 lakh`

ii) Individual shareholders 11,19,627 - 11,19,627 2.24 26,11,641 - 26,11,641 2.61 0.37
holding nominal share
capital in excess of

1 lakh`

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Non Resident Indians 2,44,216 27,000 2,71,216 0.54 6,50,397 13,500 6,63,897 0.66 0.12
HUF 6,01,787 - 6,01,787 1.20 11,44,497 - 11,44,497 1.14 -0.06
Trust 2,400 - 2,400 0.005 7,900 - 7,900 0.01 0.005
IEPFA - - - - 6,22,570 - 6,22,570 0.62 0.62
Sub-Total (B)(2):- 1,12,12,741 13,19,315 1,25,32,056 25.06 2,31,40,929 19,01,262 2,50,42,191 25.04 -
Total Public 1,12,52,005 13,44,770 1,25,96,775 25.19 2,32,42,378 19,51,172 2,51,93,550 25.19 -
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. SHARES HELD BY - - - - - - - - -
CUSTODIAN FOR
GDRS & ADRS
Grand Total (A+B+C) 4,86,55,230 13,44,770 5,00,00,000 100 9,80,48,828 19,51,172 10,00,00,000 100 -
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MUNJAL AUTO
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

S. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the Share holding at the
No. beginning of the year end of the year

(As on 01.04.2017) (As on 31.03.2018)
No. of % of % of Shares No. of % of % of Shares % change
Shares total Pledged/ Shares total Pledged/ in share

Shares encumbered Shares encumbered holding
of the to total of the to total during

company shares company shares the year
1 Thakurdevi Investments 3,74,03,225 74.81% NIL 74.81%7,48,06,450 NIL NIL

Private Limited
Total 3,74,03,225 74.81% NIL 7,48,06,450 74.81% NIL NIL

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of shares of

the company the company
1 At the beginning of the year 3,74,03,225 74.81% 3,74,03,225 74.81%
2 Increase in holding of Promoters by issue of NIL Nil 3,74,03,225 Nil

Bonus Shares as on July 13, 2017
3 At the End of the year 3,74,03,225 74.81% 7,48,06,450 74.81%

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)
S.No. Name 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Shares % Shares %

1 Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 622,570 0.62 - -

2 Jayakumar C 401,120 0.40 2,04,825 0.40
3 Anita Rawat 240,000 0.24 1,20,000 0.24
4 V Srinivasa Rangan 214,000 0.21 - -
5 Kiran Suzanne Coelho 200,000 0.20 1,00,000 0.20
6 Lincoln P Coelho 200,000 0.20 1,00,000 0.20
7 Crochet Trade & Investment Private Ltd. 186,000 0.19 93,000 0.19
8 Sunil Kumar Gupta 166,000 0.17 83,000 0.17
9 D Srimathi 164,924 0.16 82,462 0.16

10 Prabhudas Lilladhar Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. 150,329 0.15 - -

TOTAL 25,44,943 2.54 7,83,287 1.57
Note: The shares of the Company are traded frequently and hence date wise increase/ decrease in shareholding is not provided.
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

No. of sharesShareholding of each % of total No. of shares % of total
shares ofDirectors and KMP shares of

the company the company
At the beginning of the year

1 Mrs. Anju Munjal, WTD 311 0.0006 311 0.0006

2 Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla, Director 250 0.0005 250 0.0005
Increase in holding of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel by issue of Bonus
Shares as on July 13, 2017:

1 Mrs. Anju Munjal, WTD 311 0.0006 311 0.0006
2 Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla, Director 250 0.0005 250 0.0005

At the End of the year
1 Mrs. Anju Munjal, WTD 622 0.0006 622 0.0006
2 Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla, Director 500 0.0005 500 0.0005

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year (01.04.2017)
i) Principal Amount 44,42,29,392 - - 44,42,29,392
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 39,17,690 - - 39,17,690

Total (i+ii+iii) 44,81,47,082 - - 44,81,47,082
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
• Addition - - - -

• Reduction 15,79,96,929 - - 15,79,96,929
Net Change -15,79,96,929 -
Indebtedness at the end of the

15,79,96,929

financial year (31.03.2018)
i) Principal Amount 28,76,53,915 - - 28,76,53,915
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 24,96,238 - - 24,96,238

Total (i+ii+iii) 29,01,50,153 - - 29,01,50,153
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MUNJAL AUTO
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
( In Lacs)`

S. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
No. Mr. Sudhir Mrs. Anju Mr. Anuj

Kumar Munjal
Total

Munjal Munjal
- CMD

Amount
-WTD - WTD

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 238.28 168.80 207.97 615.05

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 1.72 41.20 2.03 44.95

Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - - -

section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - -
2. Stock Option - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - -
4. Commission

- as % of profit - - - -
- others, specify... - - - -

5. Others, please specify
a) Company’s contribution to the provident Fund 14.40 12.60 12.60 39.60
b) Company’s contribution to Superannuation scheme 12.00 10.50 10.50 33.00
c) Gratuity 5.77 5.05 5.05 15.87

Total (A) 272.17 238.15 238.15 748.47
748.47Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other Directors ( In Lacs)`

S. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
No.

Independent Directors Mr. Mr. Mr. Mr. Mr. Mr. Jal
Vikram

Total
Naresh Mahendra Ramkisan Sudesh Ratanshaw

Shah
Amount

Kumar Sanghvi Devidayal Kumar Patel
Chawla Duggal

• Fee for attending Board/ 4.72 3.40 3.60 3.80 2.20 1.40 19.12
Board committee meetings

• Commission - - - - - - -
• Others, please specify - - - - - - -

Total (1) 4.72 3.40 3.60 3.80 2.20 1.40 19.12
4. Other Non-Executive Directors

• Fee for attending board - - - - - - -
committee meetings

• Commission - - - - - - -
• Others, please specify - - - - - - -

Total (2) - - - - - - -
Total (B) = (1 + 2) 4.72 3.40 3.60 3.80 2.20 1.40 19.12
Total Managerial Remuneration 4.72 3.40 3.60 3.80 2.20 1.40 19.12

19.12Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD
( In Lacs)`

S. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No. CEO Company Secretary CFO Total
1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - 17.36 44.91 62.27
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - - - -

Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - -
4. Commission

- as % of profit - - - -
- others, specify... - - - -

5. Others, please specify
a) Company’s contribution to the provident Fund - 0.86 2.36 3.22
b) Company’s contribution to Superannuation Fund - 0.71 1.96 2.67
c) Gratuity - 0.35 0.95 1.30

Total - 19.28 50.18 69.46

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Section Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,

of the Description Penalty/ [RD/NCLT/ if any
Companies Punishment/ COURT] (give Details)

Act Compounding
fees imposed

A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - -None -
Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - -None -
Compounding - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - -None -
Compounding - - - - -

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Date : May 28, 2018 Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Place : Waghodia, Vadodara Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00084080
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MUNJAL AUTO
ANNEXURE D TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

Details as per Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
S.N. Particulars
i. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median

remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year
Executive Directors

CMD WTD WTD
101 88 88
X X X

ii. The % increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Executive Directors KMPs
Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manger, if CMD WTD WTD CFO CS
any of the Financial Year 29.90% 24.79% 25.66% 10.09% 12.09%

iii. The % increase in the median remuneration of employees in the 9.53%
financial year

iv. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company 1168
v. The explanation on the relationship between average increase in Annual Increase in remuneration is based on the

remuneration and Company performance remuneration policy for different grades, industry pattern,
qualifications and experience, responsibilities shouldered

vi. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel and individual performance of the Key Managerial personnel
against the performance of the Company & other employees and also performance of the Company.

vii. Variations in the market capitalization of the company, price earnings 2017-18 2016-17
ratio as at the closing date of the current financial year and previous Market Capitalization 713.00 Cr. 504.00 Cr.` `
financial year and percentage increase over decrease in the market PE Ratio 17.14 15.87
quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at Last Public Offer NA NA
which the Company came out with the last public offer

viii. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial % Increase in 2017-18 Justification/

Remarksyear and its comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if Salaries of Employees 15.15%
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the Managerial 26.88%
managerial remuneration Remuneration

ix. Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Particulars % of Net Sales
for F.Y 2017-18Personnel against the performance of the Company

CMD 0.26%
WTD 0.23%
WTD 0.23%
CFO 0.05%
CS 0.02%

x. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration Key parameters of Whole time Directors’ variable
availed by the Directors remuneration includes components like incentive on

growth of top-line and growth in profitability.
xi. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director to that of NOT APPLICABLE

the employees who are not Directors but receive remuneration in
excess of the highest paid Director during the year and

xii. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy Remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the
of the Company. Company.
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ANNEXURE C TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form No. MR-3

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018ST

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules,
2014]
To,
The Members,
Munjal Auto Industries Ltd,
187, GIDC Industrial Estate
Waghodia
Dist: Baroda-391760
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices
bythe Company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of MUNJALAUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on 31 March, 2018, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes andst

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.
We have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial
year ended on 31 March, 2018 according to the provisions of:st

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment,

Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)

Guidelines, 1999;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding

the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(vi) Having regard to the products, processes and locations of the Company as also having regard to the compliance system prevailing
in the Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, ,on test check basis we further
report that the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:
1. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
2. The Air (Prevention And Control of Pollution) Act, 1981
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3.

MUNJAL AUTO
The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

4. The Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling and Trans-boundary Movement) Rules, 1989
5. Indian Boiler Regulations Act, 1950
6. The Static and Mobile Pressure Vessels (unfired) Rules, 1981 [SMPV(U) Rules]
7. Indian Explosives Act,1884

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. including The Securities

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘LODR’).

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
We further report that

Directors. Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of theWe further report that
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

during the audit period:We further report (by way of information) that
(a) The Company has issued Bonus shares of 2/- each fully paid up for every one Equity Share of 2/- each fully paid up as on` `

the record date July 12, 2017 aggregating to 5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of 10,00,00,000 to the members of the Company pursuant`
to the approval granted by the members of the company at their 32 Annual General Meeting during the period under review.nd

(b) The Company has not issued any Debt bearing securities during the period under review and accordingly
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2009 were not applicable.

(c) The Company has not issued any stock options to the employees and accordingly. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 were not applicable.

(d) The Company has neither got delisted Equity Shares nor bought back any security of the Company and accordingly
- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and
- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities ) Regulations, 1998
were not applicable during the audit period.

(e) Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India mandatorily applicable during the audit
period were complied with.

For Devesh Vimal & Co.
Practising Company Secretaries

Date : May 25, 2018 CS Devesh A. Pathak
Place : Vadodara Partner

FCS: 4559
CP No. 2306
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ECONOMY OUTLOOK

Although the global economy is more vulnerable to shocks, the
underlyingfundamentalsarestrongenoughto maintainahealthygrowth
rate for 2018-19.Globalgrowth accelerated markedly in 2017 to 3%, its
fastest rate since 2011, and it is expected to remain same in 2018-19.
Theglobaleconomywill continue to follow the trends in the world’s two
largest economies, China and the US. It is expected that the Chinese
economy will start to slowat a steady rate. The global economy will
remain healthy; although vulnerable to shocks, geopolitical risks and
hence greater volatility.

INFY 18, it is worth takinga lookat India’s economicperformance over

INDIAN ECONOMY

what has been quite an interesting period. While the first quarter of the
yearsaw theimpactofdemonetisationsettlingdown, in thenextquarter,
introduction of the landmark Goods and ServicesTax (GST) brought in
some uncertainties asbusinessesadjusted to thenew regime. This did
not take long, and from the third quarter onwards, signs of growth
returningwere evident.

In the coming financial year, India is expected to grow at 7.3% during
2018 - 19.The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has trimmed India’s
growth projection by 0.1 percentage point for theyear owing to high oil
prices and a tight monetary policy regime. Even then, the economy
wouldbe the fastest-growingone among large nations in 2018-19 and
2019-20.India’s economy grew at a four-year-low of 6.7 per cent in
2017-18.

As per ICRA,The Indian Automotive Industry reported impressive

INDIAN AUTOMOTIVE INDUSTRY

performance in FY2018 despite witnessing some volatility during GST
implementation.While demonetization impact inH2FY2017 led to a low
base, the overall domestic industry witnessed salesgrowth of 14.2%in
FY2018 over the previous year buoyed by 6.6%GDP growth (7.1% in
FY2017 as per Central Statistical Organisation), soft interest rateand
improved financingavenues, resurgenceof rural demandand continued
infrastructure and economic reform push from the government.All the
segments of theautomotive industrywitnessed above15%growth rate
in FY2018 over the corresponding year, barring passenger vehicles
(7.9% growth). On the export front, the sales volumes increased by
17% in FY2018 to 40.4 lakh units (34.8 lakh units in FY2017). The
growthwas ledbythe two-wheelerand three-wheelerssegments,which
witnessed 20.3% and 40.1% volume expansion respectively, was
driven by revival in demand from key African markets although on a
contracted base of previous two fiscals. In contrast the export volumes

for passenger vehicle and commercial vehicles declined by 1.5%and
10.5%,respectively, duetostrategic decisions takenbya few international
OEMs.

The two-wheeler industry, which is, at present, the major operative
segment for MunjalAuto Industries Limited (MAIL),witnessed a 14.8%
growth in the domestic market and crossed the historic two-crore unit
sale milestone during FY2018 (1.76 crore units in FY2017). Backed
byexpandingurbanconsumption,newproduct launchesand increased
in rural penetration, the scooter segment led the segment growthwith a
19.9%growthand increased itsmarket share to 33%(32%in FY2017)
of the total two-wheeler industry. The motorcycles segment also
witnessed astrongperformance inFY2018with double-digit growth of
13.7%, a first since FY2012.This was backed by improved rural
sentiments followingtwo favourablecropcycles,easy financeavailability
and supportive government policies.As per ICRA, the outlook for the
sector is largely positive although rising fuelprices and interest rates will
be a key challenge that may moderate domestic demand across
segments. It is estimated that the domestic two-wheeler segment to
grow by 8-10% in FY2019 .

In thecoming decade, the mainfocus would beon enhancing efficiency

RISKS AND CONCERNS

and productivity, and on innovation, driven by changing customer
demands. Price sensitivity of the Indian consumer, cost optimization
needs of manufacturers and increasing focus on environmental
concerns will drive critical changes in the market.

Future strategies of theauto companieswill have to focus on increased
environmental safety concerns, rising fuel pricesandcost-effectiveness
in the rising market competition. Innovationhas to focus on increasing
efficiency and reducing emissions.

Customer experiencewill be a key factor to retain the existingonesand
reach out to the new ones.After-sales service is an important aspect
whichwill help in winning the loyalty of theconsumer.

Your Company’s performance for the year has been satisfactory. In

YOUR COMPANY’S PERFORMENCE

spiteof demonetization, GSTeffects, pricing pressures, profitability is
better due to betterutilization of resources.

The long-termoutlook remains positive for the automotive industry with

FUTURE OUTLOOK

all majorglobalplayers having abase in India formanufacturing, global
sourcing as well as engineering. Correction in fuel prices and lower

ANNEXURE E TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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finance cost should further add domestic growth in the short tomedium

MUNJAL AUTO

term. Regular product launches planned by OEMs will keepcustomer
excitement levels up and createdemand and is favourable for overall
industry growth.

Your Company is also looking to expand in Research and
Development.We havealso received recognition as R& D centre duly
recognisedbyDSIR. The Company is alsodiversifying itswings towards
renewable energysector. The Company has recently bought majority
stake in a private limitedcompanywhich isengaged inmanufacturing of
wind mill blades, Composite products etc. The future outlook of your
company remains positive as your company is actively working on
both the strategic front and the operations front to takeadvantage of the
turning trends which includes research and development improving
operationalperformances, focus onquality, broaden thecustomerbase
etc.

Investors arecautionedthat statements in this managementdiscussion

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

and analysis describing your Company’s objectives, projections,
estimates and expectations may be ‘forward looking statements’ within
the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might
differ substantially or materially from those expressed or implied.
Important developments that could affect your Company’s operations
include a downtrend in the automobile industry global or domestic or
both, significant changes inpolitical and economicenvironment in India
or key markets abroad, tax laws, litigation, labour relation and interest
costs.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Munjal Auto Industries Limited

Date : May 28, 2018 Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Place : Waghodia, Vadodara Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00084080

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required under the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

A. Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The Management is pursuing energy conservation with
considerable focus and commitment. Effective use of energy,
particularly in the hard core manufacturing processes of the
Company. Optimal utilization of various energy resources like
power, fuel and oil is ensured by ongoing measures/steps that
improve power factor and other consumption.

The Company has processes to measure, monitor and improve

ANNEXURE F TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

environmental performance through various initiatives focusing
on energy, water and waste. Water efficiency and conservation
initiatives, rainwater harvesting systems, domestic sewage
treatment and recycling facilities are a part of design in all its
units towards becoming zero water discharge.

2. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

2017-18
( in Lacs)`

2016-17

(a) Total Foreign Exchange Earnings 162.10 548.53
(b) Total Foreign Exchange Outgo 45.47 104.69
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ANNEXURE G TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION POLICY

In accordance with the provisions of section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
recommended the following remuneration policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees,
which was approved and adopted by the Board.

I.

This Remuneration Policy is formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Act read with the applicable rules thereto and Regulations

PREAMBLE

of LODR. This policy is formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and has been approved by the Board of
Directors based on the recommendations of the NRC.

II.

The objective of the policy is to ensure that:

OBJECTIVE

(i) The level of composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality required
to run the Company successfully.

(ii) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

(iii) Remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

III.

The procedure and limits for payment of remuneration under this policy are in accordance with provisions of (a) the Act read with rules

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

framed there under (b) LODR (c) Articles of Association of the Company and (d) any other applicable law or regulations. In the absence
of any of the above provisions, the procedure and limits shall be governed by the prevailing HR policy of the Company.

IV.

Sitting fees are paid to Non-Executive Directors on attendance basis within the limits prescribed under the Act and rules framed there

REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

under for attending meeting of the Board and Committees thereof.

V.

Remuneration to key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

VI. REMUNERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES

Components

Basic Salary, Allowances, Retiral Benefits, such other perquisites and/or incentives and/or bonus and/or variable incentive pay based
on factors as above, as may be decided by the Management from time to time as per HR policy.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 (3) of the Act, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is required to formulate the criteria

CRITERIA FOR IDENTIFICATION OF PERSONS FOR APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTORS AND IN SENIOR MANAGEMENT

for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director. The criteria adopted by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee for the aforesaid purposes are as under:
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Criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director

QUALFICATIONSI.

(a) He/She should possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance law, management, sales,

MUNJAL AUTO

marketing administration, research, corporate governance, technical operations or other disciplines related to the Company’s
business.

(b) Such qualifications as may be prescribed under the Act read with the rules framed there under and LODR.

II.

(a) He/She should be person of integrity with high ethical standards.

POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES

(b) He/She should be able to commit to his/her responsibilities and devote sufficient time and attention to his/her professional obligation
as a director.

(c) He/She should be having courtesy, humility and positive thinking.

(d) He/She should be knowledgeable and diligent in updating his/her knowledge.

(e) He/She should have skills, experience and expertise by which the Company can benefit.

(f) In respect of Executive/Whole Time Director/ Managing Director, in addition to 1(a) & (b) and II (a) to (e) above, he/she should
have strong quality of leadership and team mentoring, recognition, management skills, vision, ability to steer the organization even
in adverse conditions, innovative thinking, result oriented and ability to enhance reputation of the organization.

III.

In respect of an Independent Director, in addition to 1(a) & (b) and II (a) to (e) above, he/she should fulfill the criteria for being appointed

INDEPENDENCE

as an Independent Director prescribed under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV to the said Act read with
16 (b) of LODR.

NOTE: All current independent directors of your Company are in fitment with the criteria prescribed in the rules referred above.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Munjal Auto Industries Limited

Place : Waghodia, Vadodara Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Date : May 28,2018 Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00084080
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To
THE MEMBERS OF
MUNJAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Munjal Auto Industries Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31 March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows andst

the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (“Ind AS financial statements”).

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

to the preparation of these IndAS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial
statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give

Opinion

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March, 2018, and its profit (financialst

performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2017 and the transition date opening balance sheet as

Other Matters
st

at 1 April, 2016 included in these Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared inst

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT



23

accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended

MUNJAL AUTO

31 March, 2017 and 31 March, 2016 dated 22 May, 2017 and 30 May, 2016 respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on thosest st nd th

financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which
have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

1.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination
of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act;

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2018, and taken on record by the Boardst

of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2018, from being appointed as a director in terms of Sectionst

164(2) of the Act;

f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure B; and

g. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS financial statements – Refer
Note 38 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses;

iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 106237W

Vishal P. Doshi
Place : Waghodia, Vadodara Partner
Date : 28 May, 2018th Membership No.101533
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date to the Members
of )Munjal Auto Industries Limited

i. (a) In our opinion, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are verified in a phased
manner over a period of two years. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
title deeds of immovable properties of the Company are held in the name of the Company.

ii. As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed during the physical verification.

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore, reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore, reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits during the
year from the public within the meaning of provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder
and therefore, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014 for any of the products of the Company and therefore, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

vii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues applicable
to it. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues were in arrears, as at 31 March, 2018 for a periodst

of more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, Goods and Service
Tax, Service tax and Duty of Customs. According to the information and explanations given to us, the followings are the particulars
of Sales Tax and Duty of Excise as at 31 March, 2018 which have not been deposited on account of dispute:st

Name of the statute Nature of Amount in Period to which Forum where pending
disputed dues the amount relates

The Gujarat Sales Sales Tax 25,49,704 Financial Year 2002-2003 Commissioner of Commercial Tax
Act, 1969 Tax (Appeals)
The Central Excise Duty of Excise 58,76,332 June, 2008- March, 2009 Commissioner of Customs,
Act, 1944 Excise and Service Tax (Appeals)

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to
any bank. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, government or by way of debentures.
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ix.

MUNJAL AUTO
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither raised any term loans or by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument) during the year nor was any unutilized amount left on this account,
as at the beginning of the year, and therefore, reporting under clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

xii. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company and therefore, reporting
under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with related parties and the details have been disclosed in the IndAS financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year and therefore, reporting under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
specified under section 192 of the Act with directors or persons connected with directors and therefore, reporting under clause (xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 106237W

Vishal P. Doshi
Place : Waghodia, Vadodara Partner
Date : 28 May, 2018th Membership No.101533
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Munjal Auto Industries Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Munjal Auto Industries Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date to the Members of
)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of (“the Company”) as of31 March, 2018st

in conjunctionwithouraudit of the IndAS financial statementsof the Company for the year ended on thatdate.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

reportingcriteriaestablished by theCompanyconsidering theessential components of internal control stated in theGuidance NoteonAudit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementationandmaintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, includingadherence toCompany’spolicies, the safeguardingof itsassets, the preventionand detectionof fraudsand errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

Our responsibility is to express an opinionon the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reportingbasedon our audit. We conducted our

Auditors’Responsibility

audit in accordancewith theGuidanceNoteonAudit of Internal FinancialControls overFinancial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)and the Standards
onAuditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants of India.Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controlsoperatedeffectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performingprocedures to obtain audit evidence about theadequacyof theinternal financialcontrols systemover financial reporting
and their operatingeffectiveness. Ouraudit of internal financial controlsover financial reporting includedobtaininganunderstandingof internal financial
controls over financial reporting,assessing the risk that amaterialweaknessexists, and testingand evaluating thedesignand operatingeffectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatementof the IndAS financial statements,whether due to fraud or error.

Webelieve that the audit evidencewe have obtained issufficient and appropriate toprovide a basis forouraudit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controlssystemover financial reporting.

ACompany’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.Acompany’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policiesand procedures that (1) pertain to themaintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with
generally acceptedaccountingprinciples, and that receipts and expendituresof theCompany are being madeonly in accordancewithauthorisations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or dispositionof the Company’s assets that couldhave a material effect on the IndAS financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusionor improper management

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and notbe detected.Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
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financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting maybecome

MUNJAL AUTO

inadequate because of changes in conditions,or that the degreeof compliance with the policies orprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal

Opinion

financial controls over financial reportingwere operating effectively asat31 March, 2018, basedon theinternal control over financial reportingcriteriast

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note onAudit of Internal Financial
Controls overFinancial Reporting issued by the Instituteof CharteredAccountants of India.

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 106237W
Vishal P. Doshi

Place : Waghodia, Vadodara Partner
Date : 28 May, 2018th Membership No.101533
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018
(Amount in Lacs)`

Particulars Note No As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 6 17,265.98 17,931.47 17,307.93
(b) Capital work-in-progress 58.51 169.11 1,425.84
(c) Intangible assets 7 243.02 175.10 173.14
(d) Financial assets

- Deposits 8 158.50 156.65 153.72
(e) Deferred tax assets (Net) 9 1,274.33 1,445.38 1,549.56
(f) Other non-current assets 10 2,044.18 1,368.45 547.99

Total Non-Current Assets 21,044.52 21,246.16 21,158.18
(2) Current Assets

(a) Inventories 11 2,727.12 2,425.38 2,741.03
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 12 6,266.17 4,807.45 2,326.94
(ii) Trade receivables 13 15,819.88 13,295.98 12,783.73
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 1,467.52 104.61 229.35
(iv) Other bank balances 15 104.93 95.48 126.62
(v) Loans 16 78.29 74.75 79.82
(vi) Other financial assets 17 7.26 10.29 9.52

(c) Current tax assets (net) 18 71.46 16.37 17.19
(d) Other current assets 19 580.65 745.64 992.91

Total Current Assets 27,123.28 21,575.95 19,307.11
Total Assets 48,167.80 42,822.11 40,465.29

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 20 2,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
(b) Other equity 21 26,264.96 24,286.77 20,869.88

Total Equity 28,264.96 25,286.77 21,869.88
Liabilities
(1) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 22 1,609.24 2,889.48 4,607.20

(b) Provisions 23 490.03 616.94 627.87
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,099.27 3,506.42 5,235.07

(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 24 8.69 59.82 781.61
(ii) Trade payables 25 13,550.68 10,295.79 9,312.79
(iii) Other financial liabilities 26 2,371.40 2,902.57 2,649.50

(b) Other current liabilities 27 1,236.58 279.77 223.08
(c) Provisions 28 636.22 490.97 393.36

Total Liabilities 17,803.57 14,028.92 13,360.34
Total Equity and Liabilities 48,167.80 42,822.11 40,465.29

Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 1-50
As per our report of even date attached
For K. C. Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112894W

Vishal P. Doshi
Partner
Membership No. 101533

Date : May 28, 2018

S. K. Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Rakesh Johari
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 00084080

Anuj Munjal Vikram Shah
Whole Time Director Chairman Audit Committee
DIN- 02714266 DIN- 00007914

Date : May 28, 2018
Place : Waghodia, VadodaraPlace : Waghodia, Vadodara
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MUNJAL AUTO

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

I Revenue from operations 29 105,647.14 92,969.40
II Other income 30 439.93 566.48
III Total Income (I+II) 106,087.07 93,535.88

IV EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 31 79,651.10 63,856.81
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 32 (252.05) (187.75)
Excise duty 2,340.29 7,970.42
Employee benefits expense 33 6,141.66 5,529.86
Finance costs 34 432.73 550.42
Depreciation and amortization expenses 35 1,818.70 1,719.62
Other expenses 36 10,513.61 9,687.26
Total Expenses (IV) 100,646.04 89,126.64

V Profit Before Tax (III-IV) 5,441.03 4,409.24
VI Tax expense 37

(a) Current tax relating to:
current year 1,101.32 944.03
earlier years 21.86 (114.70)

(b) Deferred tax 158.82 124.55
VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 4,159.03 3,455.36
VIII OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Re-measurement of the defined benefit plans 34.99 (58.85)

- Income tax impact (12.23) 20.37
22.76 (38.48)

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII) 4,181.79 3,416.88
X Earnings per equity share (of 2 each)`

Basic and diluted (in )` 39 4.16 3.46

1-50Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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For K. C. Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112894W

Vishal P. Doshi
Partner
Membership No. 101533

Date : May 28, 2018

S. K. Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Rakesh Johari
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 00084080

Anuj Munjal Vikram Shah
Whole Time Director Chairman Audit Committee
DIN- 02714266 DIN- 00007914

Date : May 28, 2018
Place : Waghodia, VadodaraPlace : Waghodia, Vadodara
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2018

Equity Share Capital
Particulars

(Amount in Lacs)`

Balance as on April 1, 2016
Changes during the year
Balance as on March 31, 2017

1,000
-

1,000
Issue of bonus shares 1,000
Balance as on March 31, 2018 2,000

Other Equity

Particulars
(Amount in Lacs)`

Reservesand Surplus Total
Capital General Retained

Reserve Reserve Earnings
Balance as at April 1, 2016 2.09 2,848.73 18,019.06 20,869.88
Profit for the year - - 3,455.36 3,455.36
Re-measurement ofdefinedbenefit plans (netof tax) - - (38.47) (38.47)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3,416.89 3,416.89
Payment of dividends - - - -
Tax on dividends - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2017 2.09 2,848.73 21,435.95 24,286.77
Profit for the year - - 4,159.03 4,159.03
Re-measurement ofdefinedbenefit plans (netof tax) - - 22.76 22.76
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4,181.79 4,181.79
Utilised for issue of bonus shares - -(1,000.00) (1,000.00)
Payment of dividend - - (1,000.00) (1,000.00)
Tax on dividend - - (203.60) (203.60)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 2.09 1,848.73 24,414.14 26,264.96

As per our report of even date attached
For K. C. Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112894W

Vishal P. Doshi
Partner
Membership No. 101533

Date : May 28, 2018

S. K. Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Rakesh Johari
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 00084080

Anuj Munjal Vikram Shah
Whole Time Director Chairman Audit Committee
DIN- 02714266 DIN- 00007914

Date : May 28, 2018
Place : Waghodia, VadodaraPlace : Waghodia, Vadodara
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(Amount in Lacs)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
5,441.03Profit before tax 4,409.24

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,818.70 1,719.62
Interest to banks 384.70 547.32
Loss on property, plant and equipment sold/discarded (net) 0.11 41.18
Unwinding of discount 5.46 4.34
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 34.99 (58.85)
Interest income (9.96) (13.98)
Dividend received (130.88) (176.91)
Net profit on sale of current investments (32.72) (24.16)
Net gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (219.10) (238.33)
Sundry balances written back (net) (14.72)-
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (0.61) 4.44
Operating profit before changes in working capital 7,291.72 6,199.19

Adjustment for (increase)/decrease in operating assets
Inventories (301.74) 315.65
Trade receivables (2,523.64) (517.06)
Other financial assets (700.09) (508.81)
Other assets 164.99 247.27

Trade payables
Adjustment for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities

3,254.89 999.56
Provisions 12.89 82.35
Other liabilities 676.87 429.00
Cash flow from operations after changes in working capital 7,875.89 7,247.15
Net Direct Taxes (Paid)/Refunded (1,162.48) (850.54)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities 6,713.41 6,396.61

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital advances & CWIP (1,153.71) (1,435.06)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 14.57 58.48

Purchase of investments (33,403.69) (27,315.87)
Sale of investments 32,196.80 25,097.86
Interest income 12.99 13.21
Dividend income 130.88 176.91
Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents (9.45) 31.14

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (2,211.61) (3,373.33)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 (Continued)
(Amount in Lacs)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings (1,485.60) (1,861.08)
Payment of dividend (1,000.00) -
Payment of dividend distribution tax (203.60) -
Net increase/(decrease) in working capital borrowings (51.13) (721.79)
Interest expenses (398.91) (563.65)

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities (3,139.24) (3,146.52)
NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,362.56 (123.24)
Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of year (see note no. 14) 104.61 229.35
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (see note below) 1,467.17 106.11

Notes:
1 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash on hands 7.98 9.22
Balance with banks

In current accounts 1,159.19 -
In fixed deposits 300.00 96.88
Cash and cash equivalents as restated 1,467.17 106.10

Reconciliation of change in liablities and financial assets arising from financial activities
Opening Balance Cash flow Non Cash Changes Closing Balance

Long-term borrowings 4,353.45 (1,485.60) - 2,867.85
Short-term borrowings 59.82 (51.13) - 8.69

Total 4,413.27 (1,536.73) - 2,876.54

As per our report of even date attached
For K. C. Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112894W

Vishal P. Doshi
Partner
Membership No. 101533

Date : May 28, 2018

S. K. Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Rakesh Johari
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 00084080

Anuj Munjal Vikram Shah
Whole Time Director Chairman Audit Committee
DIN- 02714266 DIN- 00007914

Date : May 28, 2018
Place : Waghodia, VadodaraPlace : Waghodia, Vadodara



33

Notes to the financial statements

MUNJAL AUTO

1 Corporate information
MunjalAuto Industries Limited (‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated in India having its registered office
at 187, GIDC Estate, Waghodia, District: Vadodara- 391760. The shares of the Company are listed on two stock exchanges in India i.e.
National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company is engaged in manufacturing and selling of Auto
components.

2 Application of new Indian Accounting Standards
All the Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are authorized have been considered in preparing these financial
statements.
Recent accounting pronouncements
Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration
On March 28, 2018, Ministry of CorporateAffairs (“MCA”) has notified the Companies (IndianAccountingStandards)AmendmentRules,
2018containingAppendixB to IndAS21, Foreigncurrencytransactionsandadvanceconsiderationwhichclarifies thedate of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has
received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The amendmentwill come into force fromApril 1, 2018.This amendment has
noeffect on the financial statements of the Company.

On March 28, 2018, Ministry of CorporateAffairs (“MCA”) has notified the IndAS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers. The core
Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers

principleof thenewstandard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods orservices to customers in
an amount that reflects theconsideration towhich the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods orservices. Further the new
standard requires enhanceddisclosuresabout thenature, amount, timingand uncertainty of revenue and cash flowsarising fromthe entity’s
contracts with customers. The effect on the Financial statements on adoption of IndAS 115 is being evaluatedby theCompany.

3 Basis of preparation and presentation
i. Statement of compliance

In accordance with the notification dated February 16, 2015, issued by the Ministry of CorporateAffairs, the Company has adopted
IndianAccountingStandards (referred to as “IndAS”) notified under section133 of theCompaniesAct, 2013 readwith the Companies
(IndianAccounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (IndianAccounting Standards) (Amendment)Rules, 2016 as amended
with effect fromApril 1, 2017.
The FinancialStatements havebeenprepared in accordancewith IndASnotifiedunder theCompanies (IndianAccountingStandards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended).These are the Company’s first IndAS Financial Statements. The date of transition to IndAS is April 1,
2016. The mandatory exceptions and optionalexemptions availedby the CompanyonFirst-timeadoptionhavebeen detailed in Note
No. 4 (xv).
Previous period figures in the Financial Statements have been restated incompliance to IndAS.
Up to the year ended March 31, 2017, theCompany had prepared the Financial Statements under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis in accordancewith the GenerallyAcceptedAccountingPrinciplesapplicable in India,applying the applicableAccounting
Standards as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(‘Previous GAAP’). Inaccordancewith IndAS 101- “FirstTime adoptionof IndianAccounting Standards” (IndAS 101), theCompany
has presented a reconciliationof Shareholders’equity under PreviousGAAPand IndAS as at March 31, 2017, andApril 1, 2016 and
of the Profit after tax as per Previous GAAP and Total Comprehensive Income under IndAS for the year ended March 31, 2017.

ii. Accounting convention
TheFinancialStatements havebeenpreparedon thehistorical cost conventiononaccrual basisexcept forcertain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of theconsideration given inexchangeforgoods and services. The StandaloneFinancial Statements
are presented in Rupees in Lacs and all values are rounded off to the nearest two decimal except otherwise stated.
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iii. Operating Cycle
Based on the natureof products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realization in
cash orcashequivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purposeof classification of its assets
and liabilities as current and non-current.

4 Significant Accounting Policies
i. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (including furniture, fixtures, vehicles, etc.) held foruse in theproduction or supply ofgoods orservices,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost of acquisition is inclusiveof freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses.Freehold land is not depreciated.
Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss.Cost includes items directly attributable to theconstruction oracquisition of the itemofproperty, plant and equipment,
and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as-other property assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost ofassets (other than freehold land and properties underconstruction) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
Depreciation is chargedon a pro-rata basisat thestraight line method over estimated economic useful lives of its property, plant and
equipment generally in accordancewith that provided in the Schedule II to theAct. Estimateduseful livesof theseassets are asunder:
Description Years
Building 30-60
Plant & Machinery 15
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
OfficeEquipment 5
Computers 3
An itemof property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset.Any gain or loss arising on thedisposal or retirement of an item of property, plantand equipment
is determined as the difference between the salesproceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in theStatement
ofProfit andLoss.

ii. Intangible assets
Intangibleassets with finite useful lives thatareacquiredseparately arecarriedat cost lessaccumulatedamortisationandaccumulated
impairment losses.Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 to 10 years. The estimated useful life and
amortisationmethodare reviewedat theend ofeach reportingperiod, with theeffect ofanychanges in estimatebeingaccounted foron
a prospective basis.
Intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
lossesarising fromderecognition of an intangible asset are determined as the differencebetween the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

iii. Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of theasset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
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When it isnotpossible to estimatethe recoverable amount ofan individual asset, theCompany estimates the recoverable amountof

MUNJAL AUTO

thecash-generatingunit towhich theassetbelongs. When a reasonableand consistent basis ofallocationcan be identified, corporate
assets arealso allocated to individual cash-generating unitsor otherwise they are allocated to thesmallest groupof cash-generating
units forwhicha reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, thecarrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years.A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Inventories
Inventoriesother thanscraparestatedat the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventoriesaredeterminedon a moving
weightedaverage.Finished goods andwork-in-progress (along withStock in transit) include appropriateproportion of overheads.Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion andcosts necessary to
make the sale.
Scrap is valued at estimated net realisable value.
Inventory of stores and spareparts is valued at weighted average cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower.
Provisions are made for obsolete and non-moving inventories.

v. Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of theconsideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for rebates andother similar
allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are dispatched and titles have passed, at which time all the
(a) Sale of goods

followingconditions are satisfied:
- the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

- the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effectivecontrol over the goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
- it is probable that theeconomic benefits associatedwith the transaction will flowto the Company; and
- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established.
(b) Dividend and interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefitswill flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on, time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding andat the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carryingamount on initial recognition.

vi. Leases
Leases areclassified as finance leaseswhenever the termsof the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee.All other leases are classified as operating leases. Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognisedon a
straight line basis over the term of relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase, such increases are recognised in theyear in whichsuch
benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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vii. Foreign currency transactions
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the primary economic environment in
which it operates.
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions incurrencies other than thecompany’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the datesof the transactions.At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchangedifferences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit andLoss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowingcostsdirectlyattributable to theacquisition, constructionorproduction ofqualifying assets,whichare assets that necessarily
viii. Borrowing costs

take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intendeduse orsale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets aresubstantially ready for their intended useor sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period inwhich they are incurred.

ix. Employeebenefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

Employeebenefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employeeservices are classified as short-termemployee
benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, performance incentives and compensated absences which areexpected
to occur in next twelve months. The undiscounted amount of short-termemployee benefits tobe paid in exchange for employee
services is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment benefits
(1) Defined contribution plan

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to thecontributions.The eligible employees of the Companyare entitled to receivebenefits in respectof provident fund,
for which both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered
employees’ salary.

Defined retirementbenefit planscomprisingofgratuity are recognized basedon thepresent valueofdefinedbenefit obligation
(2) Defined benefit plan

which iscomputedusing theprojectedunit creditmethod,with actuarial valuationsbeingcarriedout at theend ofeachannual
reportingperiod. These are accountedeither ascurrent employee costor included in costofassets aspermitted.Net interest
on the net defined liability is calculated by applying thediscount rate at the beginning of theperiod to thenet defined benefit
liability or asset and is recognised to the Statement of Profit and Loss except those included in cost of assets as
permitted.Remeasurement of defined retirement benefit plans comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest as defined above), are
recognised in other comprehensive income except those included in cost of assets as permitted in the period in which they
occur andarenot subsequently reclassified to theStatement of Profit andLoss. The retirementbenefit obligation recognised
in the Financial Statements represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans.Any surplus
resulting fromthis calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the formof reductions in
future contributions to the plans.

The obligation for long term employee benefits such as long term compensated absences is measured at present value of
(c) Other long term employee benefits

estimated future cash flows expected to bemadeby the company and is recognised in asimilarmanner as in the case ofdefined
benefit plans vide (b)(2) supra.
Long term employee benefit costscomprising current service cost, interest cost implicit in long termemployeebenefit cost and
gains or losses on curtailments and settlements, re-measurement including actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit andLoss as employeebenefit expenses.
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x.
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Income taxes

(a) Current tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
Statement ofProfit andLoss because of items of income or expense thatare taxable ordeductible in otheryears and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by theend of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial
(b) Deferred tax

Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to theextent that it is probable that taxable profitswill beavailableagainstwhichthosedeductible temporarydifferences
can beutilised.
The carrying amount ofdeferred taxassets is reviewed at theendof each reporting periodand reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available toallowall orpart of thedeferred tax asset tobe utilized.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settledor the asset realised,basedon tax rates (and tax laws) thathavebeen enacted orsubstantively enacted by theend of the
reporting period. The measurement ofdeferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the taxconsequences that would follow fromthe
manner inwhich the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets include MinimumAlternativeTax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give
future economic benefits in the formof availability of set off against future income tax liability.
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is
probable that the futureeconomic benefit associated with asset will be realised.

Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,except when they relate to items that are
(c) Current and deferred tax for the year

recognised in othercomprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred taxarealso recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

xi. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has apresent obligation (legal or constructive) asa result of apast event, it is probable
that the Company will be required tosettle theobligation, and a reliableestimate can bemade of the amountof the obligation.
The amount recognisedasa provision is thebestestimate of theconsiderationrequired tosettle thepresentobligation at theendof the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated tosettle the present obligation, its carryingamount is thepresent valueof thosecash flows (when the effectof the
time value of money is material).
Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
Contingent liabilitiesare disclosed in theFinancialStatementsbywayofnotes toaccounts,unlesspossibilityofanoutflowof resources
embodying economic benefit is remote.

The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold. These estimates are established using historical
Product warranty expenses

information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and management estimates regarding possible future
incidences basedon actions onproduct failures. The timing ofoutflows will vary asand whenwarrantyclaimwill arise,being typically
up to five years.
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xii. Financial instruments
Afinancial instrument isany contract that gives rise toa financial assetofoneentity anda financial liabilityorequity instrumentofanother
entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognisedwhen theCompany becomes a party to thecontractual provisions of the
instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issueof financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through the
Statement ofProfit and Loss) are added to ordeducted fromthe fair valueof the financial assets or financial liabilities,asappropriate,
oninitial recognition.Transactioncostsdirectly attributable to theacquisitionof financial assetsor financial liabilitiesat fair value through
theStatement of Profit and Loss are recognised immediately in the Statementof Profit and Loss.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
xiii. Financial assets

classification of the financial assets.

Financial assets havingcontractual terms thatgive riseon specifieddates to cash flows thatare solely payments ofprincipal and
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

interest on the principaloutstanding and that are held withina businessmodel whose objective is to hold such assets in order to
collect such contractual cash flowsareclassified in this category. Subsequently, theseare measured atamortizedcostusing the
effective interest method less any impairment losses.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if these financial assets are held
(b) Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual termsof the financial asset give riseonspecifieddates to cash flows that are solely paymentsofprincipal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.These include financial assets that are equity instruments and are irrevocably designated
as such upon initial recognition. Subsequently, these are measured at fair value andchanges therein are recognizeddirectly in
other comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes.
Dividends from these equity investments are recognized in theStatement of Profit andLoss when the right to receive payment
has been established.
When the equity investment is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

value throughother comprehensive income on initial recognition.The transaction costs directlyattributable to theacquisition of
financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

TheCompanyassesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial assetor a group of financial assets is impaired. IndAS
(d) Impairment of financial assets

109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected
losses for trade receivables that donotconstitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expectedcredit losses are
measuredatan amount equal to12 month expectedcredit losses or atan amountequal to lifetime expected losses, if the credit
risk on the financial asset has increasedsignificantly since initial recognition.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
(e) Derecognition of financial assets

transfers the financialassetandsubstantiallyall the risks and rewardsofownershipof theasset toanother party.Onderecognition
of a financial asset in its entirety (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the Statement of Profit andLoss.

Debt and equity instruments issued by Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
xiv. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

substance of thecontractual arrangements and the definitions ofa financial liabilityand anequity instrument.
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(a) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities that are notheld-for-tradingand are not designatedas atFVTPLare measured atamortised cost at theendof
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subsequent accountingperiods. The carryingamountsof financial liabilities that are subsequently measured atamortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is
included in the ‘Finance costs’.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interests in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
(b) Equity instruments

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

TheCompany derecognises financial liabilities when, andonly when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
(c) Derecognition of financial liabilities

have expired. The differencebetween thecarryingamount of the financial liability derecognisedand theconsideration paid and
payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

xv. First-time adoption – mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions
(a) Overall principle

The Company has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per IndAS as ofApril 1, 2016 (‘the transition date’) by recognising
all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not
permitted by IndAS, by reclassifying certain items from Previous GAAPto IndAS as required under the IndAS, and applying
IndAS in themeasurementof recognisedassets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject tocertain mandatoryexceptions
andcertain optional exemptions availedby theCompany as detailed below.

The Companyhasapplied thederecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions
(b) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

occurring on or after1 April, 2016 (the transition date).

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of IndAS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by IndAS 101, it

st

(c) Impairment of financial assets

has used reasonable and supportable information that is available withoutunduecost or effort to determine the credit risk at the
date that financial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date.Further, the
Companyhasnotundertakenanexhaustivesearchfor informationwhen determining, at thedate of transition to IndASs,whether
there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by IndAS 101.

The Companyhas elected to continuewith thecarryingvalueofall of itsplant andequipment and intangibleassetsas recognised
(d) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

as ofApril 01, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAPand use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of
the transitiondate.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit after tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
xvi. Statement of cash flows

nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expensesassociated
with investing or financing cash flows.The cash flowsaresegregated into operating, investing and financing activities.

5 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In theapplicationof theCompanyaccounting policies, whichare described in note 3, the management of the Companyare required to make
judgements, estimatesandassumptions about thecarryingamounts ofassets and liabilities that are not readily apparent fromother sources.
Theestimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in theperiodof the revision and futureperiods if the revision
affectsbothcurrent and future periods.
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(i) Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following are theareasofestimation uncertainty andcritical judgements that the management has made in theprocess ofapplying
the Company’s accounting policies and that have the mostsignificant effect on theamounts recognised in the financial statements:-

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairmentof assets requiresassessment ofexternal factors (significant decline
(a) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of property, plant and equipment

asset’s value, economic or legal environment, market interest rates etc.) and internal factors (obsolescence or physical
damage of an asset, poor economic performance of the asset etc.) which could result in significant change in recoverable
amount of theProperty, Plant and Equipment.

(ii) Assumptions and key sources of estimation uncertainty
(a) Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits

The employment benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number
of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/ (income) include the discount rate, inflation andmortality
assumptions.Any changes in these assumptions will impact upon thecarrying amount of employment benefit obligations.

Management reviews the useful livesof depreciable assets at each reporting.As at March31, 2018management assessed that
(b) Useful lives of depreciable assets

theuseful lives represent theexpectedutility of theassets to theCompany. Further, there isnosignificant changein the useful lives
as compared to previous year.

Managementestimates the related provision for future warranty claimsbased oncertain percentagesof revenue. Theprovision
(c) Estimation of provision for warranty

is basedon historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims. Management, also estimates
regarding possible future outflow on servicing the customers for any corrective action in respect of product failure which is
generally expected to be settled within a period of 1 to 5 years.The assumptions made in relation to the current period are
consistent with those in the prior year. Factors that could impact the estimated claim information include the success of the
Company’s productivity and quality initiatives.

Inventoriesare measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Write-down of inventories are calculated based on an

(d) Provision for slow moving and obsolete items in inventory valuation

analysis of foreseeable changes in demand, technology or market conditions to determine obsolete or excess inventories.
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment (Amount in Lacs)`

Particulars /Assets Tangible Assets Total
Freehold Building Plant & Furniture Vehicles Office Computers

Land Equipment & Fixtures Equipment
GROSS BLOCK
At April 1, 2016 1,635.23 4,236.73 10,727.57 318.78 304.84 56.82 27.96 17,307.93
Additions - 844.00 1,195.28 4.14 334.53 28.74 10.68 2,417.37
Deduction/Adjustments - - 45.65 14.69 62.40 0.46 - 123.20
At March 31, 2017 1,635.23 5,080.73 11,877.20 308.23 576.97 85.10 38.64 19,602.10
Additions 81.96 71.84 694.91 7.77 230.87 35.21 0.48 1,123.04

-Deduction/Adjustments - 7.00 - 14.08 1.10 0.38 22.56
At March 31, 2018 1,717.19 5,152.57 12,565.11 316.00 793.76 119.21 38.74 20,702.58

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At April 1, 2016 - - - - - - - -
Charge for the year - 182.32 1,395.10 22.45 60.72 19.67 13.92 1,694.18
Deduction/Adjustments - - 5.93 8.28 9.34 - - 23.55
At March 31, 2017 - 182.32 1,389.17 14.17 51.38 19.67 13.92 1,670.63

-Charge for the year 207.36 1,426.31 14.70 86.75 23.55 15.18 1,773.85
-Deduction/Adjustments - 3.17 - 3.65 0.68 0.38 7.88

At March 31, 2018 - 389.68 2,812.31 28.87 134.48 42.54 28.72 3,436.60
Net Block
AtApril 1, 2016 1,635.23 4,236.73 10,727.57 318.78 304.84 56.82 27.96 17,307.93
At March 31, 2017 1,635.23 4,898.41 10,488.03 294.06 525.59 65.43 24.72 17,931.47
At March 31, 2018 1,717.19 4,762.89 9,752.80 287.13 659.28 76.67 10.02 17,265.98

Notes:
1 The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition date)

measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.
2 For details of property, plant and equipment given as security to lenders, refer Note No. 22.
3 The aggregate depreciation charge for the year has been included underdepreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.
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Particulars /Assets
(Amount in Lacs)`

Computer Software Total
7 Intangible Assets

GROSS BLOCK
At April 1, 2016 173.14 173.14
Additions 27.39 27.39
Deduction/Adjustments - -
At March 31, 2017 200.53 200.53

112.77Additions 112.77
Deduction/Adjustments - -
At March 31, 2018 313.30 313.30
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At April 1, 2016 - -
Charge for the year 25.43 25.43
Deduction/Adjustments - -
At March 31, 2017 25.43 25.43

44.85Charge for the year 44.85
Deduction/Adjustments - -
At March 31, 2018 70.28 70.28
Net Block
At April 1, 2016 173.14 173.14
At March 31, 2017 175.10 175.10
At March 31, 2018 243.02 243.02

1 The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition
date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per
Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.

2 The aggregate amortisation charge for the year has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
8 Deposits

Unsecured, considered good
Deposits 158.50 156.65 153.72
Total 158.50 156.65 153.72
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(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

9 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Deferred tax assets 2,850.04 3,012.97 3,011.43
Deferred tax liabilities (1,575.71) (1,567.59) (1,461.87)

Total 1,274.33 1,445.38 1,549.56

For the Financial Year 2017-18
(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars Opening Recognized Recognized in Closing
Balance in Statement of Other Balance

Profit and Loss Comprehensive
Income

Deferred tax asset on account of
Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis 382.70 13.89 (12.23) 384.36
Provision for slow moving and obsolete items - 65.58 - 65.58
Impairmentof doubtful debts - 1.20 - 1.20
MATcredit entitlement 2,630.27 (231.37) - 2,398.90

Total Deferred Tax Assets (A) 3,012.97 (150.70) (12.23) 2,850.04
Deferred tax liability on account of
Property, plant and equipment & intangible assets 1,512.84 37.62 - 1,550.46
Impact of discounting of Warranty Provisions 6.43 (3.37) - 3.06
Impact of recognition of assets under IndAS 12.98 (12.98) - -
Financial assetscarried at fair value through profit or loss 35.34 (13.15) - 22.19

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (B) 1,567.59 8.12 - 1,575.71
Net Deferred Tax (A-B) 1,445.38 (158.82) (12.23) 1,274.33

For the Financial Year 2016-17
Deferred tax asset on account of
Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis 373.98 (11.65) 20.37 382.70
Amortisation of lease rent 7.18 (7.18) - -
MATCredit entitlement 2,630.27 - - 2,630.27
Total Deferred Tax Assets (A) 3,011.43 (18.83) 20.37 3,012.97
Deferred tax liability on account of
Property, plant and equipment & intangible assets 1,424.44 88.40 - 1,512.84
Impact of discounting of warranty provisions 5.68 0.75 - 6.43
Impact of recognition of assets under IndAS 7.29 5.69 - 12.98
Financial assetscarried at fair value through profit or loss 24.46 10.88 - 35.34

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (B) 1,461.87 105.72 - 1,567.59
Net Deferred Tax (A-B) 1,549.56 (124.55) 20.37 1,445.38
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(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

10 Other Non-Current Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 208.14 46.59 38.64
Advance for Leasehold land 559.47 724.17 444.66
Advance Income tax (net of provisions) 12.37 28.18 6.14
VAT/CSTpaid underprotest 6.39 6.39 6.39
Prepayments - Leasehold Land 1,257.81 563.12 52.16

Total 2,044.18 1,368.45 547.99

11 Inventories
1,186.35Raw Materials 1,174.87 1,671.33

Work in Process 509.15910.62 549.12
Finished Goods 500.56252.03 272.84
Finished Goods- Stock in Transit 99.11 - -

279.01Store and spares 240.80 247.74
Total 2,727.12 2,425.38 2,741.03

(i) Inventory write downs/ provisions for slow-moving and obsolete items are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing,
liquidation plan and net realisable value. Provision for slow-moving and obsolete items of inventories amounted to
(March 31, 2017: 72.87 Lacs; April 1, 2016: 96.43 Lacs). The changes in provisions are recognised as an expense in the

191.07 Lacs
` `

Statement of Profit and Loss.
(ii) For Inventories given as security to lenders, refer Note No. 24.
(iii) The cost of inventories recognised as an expense is disclosed in Notes 31, 32 and 36 in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016

Particulars (Units) (Amount (Units (Amount (Units (Amount
in Lacs) in Lacs) in Lacs)

12 Investments
Financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss:
Investment in Mutual Funds (Unquoted*)
HDFC High Int Fund - Dynamic Plan 610,105 359.48 610,105 345.51 610,105 311.10
RelianceLiquid Fund - - 100,655 1,538.75 38,391 586.90
Reliance Liquid Fund TP 81,339 3,434.32 - - - -
Reliance Money Manager Fund Institutional Plan - - 117,807 1,186.91 91,329 917.14
RelianceLiquidity Fund 21,347 556.19 - - - -
Reliance Small Cap Fund 472,152 204.64 472,152 163.35 228,042 55.47
HDFC Equity Fund 19,260 113.94 19,181 104.30 19,181 79.93
HDFC Midcap Opportunities Fund 381,311 211.46 391,311 189.88 269,309 97.62
HDFC Top 200 Fund - - - - 15,118 46.72
RelianceTop 200 Fund 328,457 101.88 - - - -
ICICI Prudence Value Discovery Fund - - 76,991 101.76 27,094 29.48
ICICI Prudence Top 100 - - - - 33,361 74.50
ICICI Prudence Banking and

FinancialSectorFund - - - - 149,563 49.13
ICICI EquityArbitrage Fund 1,181,960 271.88 1,181,960 257.37 - -
RelianceEquityOpportunities Fund - - - - 68,583 45.55
DSP Blackrock Microcap Fund 122,034 76.41 122,034 70.65 91,329 33.40
HDFC Liquid Fund DDR - - 44 0.45 - -
SBI Ultra Short Term Debt Fund - - 77 0.78 - -
SBI Blue Chip Fund 284,072 105.74 281,832 94.62 - -
DSP Blackrock Money Manager Fund - - 55 0.55 - -
Motilal Oswal Most Focused Multicap Fund 719,327 189.21 719,327 163.79 - -
Kotak EquityArbitrage Fund 1,096,987 272.75 1,096,987 256.93 - -
Kotak Select FocusFund 582,569 185.33 582,569 167.44 - -
DSP Blackrock Opportunities Fund 86,483 182.94 86,207 164.41 - -

Total 6,266.17 4,807.45 2,326.94

Investments in mutual funds have been fair valued at closing net asset value (NAV).
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(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

13 Trade receivables
Unsecured, Considered good 15,819.88 13,295.98 12,783.73
Unsecured,Considered Doubtful 3.43 - -

Total (A) 15,823.31 13,295.98 12,783.73
Less: Impairment for doubtful trade receivables (B) 3.43 - -

Total (A-B) 15,819.88 13,295.98 12,783.73

(i) Generally, the Companyenters into long-term sales arrangement with its customers. The average credit period is around 45 days.
(ii) At March 31, 2018, the Company had a (March 31, 2017: single customer,April 1, 2016: single customer) havingsingle customer

outstanding more than 5%of total trade receivables that accounted for approximately (March31, 2017: 91%,April 1, 2016:89%)92%
of total trade receivablesoutstanding.

(iii) Accordingly, the Company assesses impairment loss on dues from its customers based on facts and circumstances relevant to
each transaction. Usually, Company collects all its receivables from its customerswithin due date.

(iv) No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other
person or from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

(v) Movement of Impairment for doubtful trade receivables:
(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Balance at beginning of the year - -
Addition in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables 3.43 -
Balance at end of the year 3.43 -

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
14 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with banks
In CurrentAccounts 1,159.19 96.89 226.05
In FixedDeposits 300.00 - -

Cash on hand 8.33 7.72 3.30
Total 1,467.52 104.61 229.35

15 Other Bank Balances
Balances with banks

Unclaimed DividendAccounts (earmarked accounts) 100.79 91.73 122.93
Deposit with bank held as margin money

against Bank guarantee & LC 4.14 3.75 3.69
Total 104.93 95.48 126.62

16 Current Loans
Unsecured, considered good

Loans to Employees 4.51 0.97 6.04
Deposits 51.45 51.45 51.45
Other advances 22.33 22.33 22.33
Total 78.29 74.75 79.82
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(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

17 Other Current Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable 7.26 10.29 9.52

Total 7.26 10.29 9.52

18 Current Tax Assets (net)
Current Tax Assets
Advance tax (net of provisions) 71.46 16.37 17.19

Total 71.46 16.37 17.19

19 Other Current Assets
Unsecured, considered good
BalancewithGovernmentAuthorities 41.58 470.29 703.71
Deposit (Refernote below) 15.45 15.45 15.45
Prepaid Expenses 224.97 144.92 119.33
Prepayments - Leasehold Land 16.43 8.14 0.76
Advance to Vendors 282.22 106.84 153.66

Total 580.65 745.64 992.91

The Company had deposited 15.45 Lacs under protest towards octroi duty in a separate bank account jointly held with the Sarpanch,`
Waghodia GramPanchayat. The State GovernmentofGujarathas notified that industrial units in thenotifiedareaofWaghodia is not required
to pay the octroi duty from July 19, 1997. The Company believes it has no liability for octroi duty even for the earlier period and hence no
provision hasbeen made. In theabsence ofclarity regarding rights of respective parties, interest income creditedby the bankamounting to

(As at March 31, 2017: 20.10 Lacs;As atApril 1, 2016: 18.38 Lacs) on the aforesaid amount till March 31, 2018 has not21.43 Lacs ` `
been recognised.
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
20 Equity Share Capital

Authorised Share capital
10,00,00,000 (As at March 31, 2017: 10,00,00,000;

As at April 1, 2016: 10,00,00,000) Equity Shares of 2 each` 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Unclassified Shares 500.00 500.00 500.00

10,00,00,000 (As at March 31, 2017: 5,00,00,000;
Issued, subscribed & fully paid share capital

As at April 1, 2016: 5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of 2 each` 2,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total 2,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

(i) A reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period is as under:
(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars No. of Shares Share Capital
As atApril 1, 2016 50,000,000 1,000.00
Additions/(Reductions) - -
As at March 31, 2017 50,000,000 1,000.00
As at April 1, 2017 50,000,000 1,000.00
Add: Bonus shares issued 50,000,000 1,000.00
As at March 31, 2018 100,000,000 2,000.00
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(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

For all matters submitted tovote in a shareholders meeting of the Company, every holderofanequity share as reflected in the records
of theCompanyon the dateof the shareholdersmeetingshall have one vote in respect ofeach share held.Any dividenddeclared by
theCompany shall bepaid to eachholderofEquityshares in proportion to the numberof sharesheld to total equity sharesoutstanding
as on that date. In the event of liquidation of the Company all preferential amounts if any shall be discharged by the Company. The
remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed to theholders ofequityshares in proportion to the numberof shares held to the
total equity sharesoutstanding ason that date.
Particulars No. of shares Extent of

Holding
(iii) Details of shares held by holding company are classified as under

As at March 31, 2018
Thakur Devi Investments Private Limited

74,806,450 74.81%
As at March 31, 2017 37,403,225 74.81%
As atApril 1, 2016 37,403,225 74.81%

Thakur Devi Investments Private Limited
(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company are as under

As at March 31, 2018 74,806,450 74.81%
As at March 31, 2017 37,403,225 74.81%
As atApril 1, 2016 37,403,225 74.81%

(v) Pursuant to the approval of the shareholders accorded inAnnual General Meeting held on June 30, 2017, theCompany hasallotted
5,00,00,000number of fully paid Bonus shares onJuly 13, 2017 in the ratio of one equity share of 2 each fullypaid up forevery one`
existing equity shareof 2 each fully paid up.`

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
21 Other Equity

CapitalReserve 2.09 2.09 2.09
General Reserves 1,848.73 2,848.73 2,848.73
RetainedEarnings 24,414.14 21,435.95 18,019.06

Total 26,264.96 24,286.77 20,869.88
(i) Particulars relating to Other Equity

Other Equity As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 2.09 2.09
Add: Movements - -
Closing Balance (A) 2.09 2.09
GeneralReserves
Opening Balance 2,848.73 2,848.73
Less: Utilised for issue of Bonus Shares 1,000.00
Closing Balance (B) 1,848.73 2,848.73
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 21,435.95 18,019.06
Add: Net profit after tax transferred from Statement ofProfit & Loss 4,159.03 3,455.36
Add: Other Comprehensive income arising fromre-measurement of
defined benefit obligationnet of income tax 22.76 (38.47)
Less: Dividend paid (amount per share (Previous Year Nil))2 on 5,00,00,000 shares ` (1,000.00) -
Less: Tax on Dividend paid (203.60) -
Closing Balance (C) 24,414.14 21,435.95
Total (A+B+C) 26,264.96 24,286.77
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(ii) CapitalReserve represents the profit on re-issue of forfeited shares.
(iii) The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.As the general

reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items
included in the general reserve will not reclassifiedsubsequently to profit or loss.

(iv) In respect of the year endedMarch31,2018, the Boardof Directors hasproposed a final dividend of 1.20 per share bepaid on fully`
paid equity shares. This equity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been
included asa liability in these financial statements. The total estimated equity dividend to be paid is 1,200.00 lacs and the dividend`
distribution tax thereon amounts to 246.66 lacs.`

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
22 Borrowings

Secured
TermLoans

From Banks 1,609.24 2,889.48 4,607.20
Total 1,609.24 2,889.48 4,607.20

(i) Nature of security and terms of repayment for long termsecured borrowings including current maturities:
Particulars Terms of Repayment
Term loan outstanding 25.00 Lacs` Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments of 25`

Lacs commencing from September, 2013
Term loan outstanding 4,71.88 Lacs` Repayable in 24equal quarterly instalments of 46.88`

Lacs commencing from January, 2016.
Above loans are secured by way of mortgage/charge created on FixedAssets of the Company’s plant at Bawal, District - Rewari,
Haryana.
Term loan outstanding 1,57.50 Lacs secured by way of mortgage /` Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments of 78.75`
charge created Plant and Machinery acquired out of the sanctioned Lacs commencing from September, 2013
TermLoan forWaghodia,District- Vadodara, Gujarat.
Term loan outstanding 3,28.00 Lacs secured by way of mortgage /` Repayable in initial two quarterly instalmentsof 25`
charge created Plant and Machinery acquired out of the sanctioned Lacs and remaining 22 quarterly instalment of
TermLoan for Waghodia, District- Vadodara, Gujarat.

`
66 Lacs commencing from December, 2013

Term loan outstanding 6,25.06 Lacs secured by way of mortgage /` Repayable in 24equal quarterly instalments of 41.66`
charge created Plant and Machinery acquired out of the sanctioned Lacs commencing from January, 2016
TermLoan forWaghodia,District- Vadodara, Gujarat.
Term loan outstanding 1,260.42 secured by way of charge created` Repayable in 24 equal quarterly instalments of 114.58`
on fixed assets funded out of term loan pertaining to theCompany’s Lacs commencing from December, 2014
plant at Dharuhera, District - Rewari, Haryana.

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
23 Long-termprovisions

Provision for employee benefits (For details refer note no. 41)
Gratuity 75.91 159.40 261.18
Leave Encashment 343.13 410.37 333.47
Provision for warranties 70.99 47.17 33.22

Total 490.03 616.94 627.87
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(i) Movement in warranties provision:

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening balance 79.55 57.67
Additionsduring the year 21.74 25.40
Amount utilised during the year (3.90) (7.86)
Provision reversed during the year (16.06) -
Unwinding ofdiscounton provisions 5.46 4.34
Closing balance 86.79 79.55
Long-term Provisions 70.99 47.17
Short-term Provisions 15.80 32.38
Theprovision for warranty claims represents the present value as best estimate of the future economic benefits thatwill be required
under theCompany’s obligations forwarranties. The estimatehas been made on thebasisof historical warranty trendsand may vary
as a result of newmaterials, altered manufacturingprocesses or other events affecting product quality.

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
24 Borrowings

Secured
Loans repayable on demand from banks 8.69 59.82 781.61

Total 8.69 59.82 781.61
(i) These loans are secured by a first charge on inventories,

receivables and all other current assets of the Company.

25 TradePayables
Trade Payables 13,550.68 10,295.79 9,312.79

Total 13,550.68 10,295.79 9,312.79
(i) The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006”hasbeen determined to theextent suchpartieshavebeen identified on thebasisof information availablewith the Company.The
disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as below:

(a)
Trade payables -Total outstanding dues of Micro & Small enterprises*

Principal & Interest amount remaining unpaid but not due as at year end 165.29 155.97 130.11
- Principal - - -
- Interest 6.76 0.91 1.45

(b) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and - - -
Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2006, along with theamount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond theappointed day during theyear

(c) Interest due and payable for the periodof delay in making payment (which - - -
have been paid but beyond the appointedday during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
DevelopmentAct, 2006

(d) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end 6.76 0.91 1.45
(e) Further interest remainingdue and payable even in the succeeding

years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid
to the small enterprise 41.32 40.41 38.96

*Based on the confirmation from Vendors.
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(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
26 Other Financial Liabilities

Current maturitiesof long termdebt 1,258.61 1,463.97 1,607.33
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 24.96 39.18 55.51
Unclaimed Dividends 100.79 91.74 122.93
Security Deposits 16.19 16.15 16.65
Expenses payable 255.40 424.65 220.54
Payable to Employees 596.25 716.03 516.15
Payable for Capital Goods 119.20 150.85 110.39

Total 2,371.40 2,902.57 2,649.50

27 Other Current liabilities
Liability for statutorypayments 1,167.00 250.88 187.72
Advance from Customers 69.58 28.89 35.36

Total 1,236.58 279.77 223.08

28 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits (For details refer note no. 41)
Gratuity 117.51 106.38 94.14
Leave Encashment 502.91 352.20 274.77
Provision for warranties (Refer note no. 23 for details) 15.80 32.39 24.45

Total 636.22 490.97 393.36

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
29 Revenue from Operations

Sale of Products
Components of Automobile (including excise duty) 104,710.23 92,249.76

Sale of scrap
Other Operating Revenue

932.89 703.14
Export Incentives 4.02 16.50

Total 105,647.14 92,969.40

30 Other Income
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
Deposit with bank and others 9.96 13.98

Dividend received on investments carried at fair value through Profit or Loss
Dividend Income

130.88 176.91
Cash Discount 24.99 35.95
Net Profit on sale of Current Investments 32.72 24.16
Net gain on investments carried at fair value through Profit or Loss 219.10 238.33

Sundry balances written back (net)
Other non-operating income

- 14.71
Miscellaneous Income 22.28 62.44

Total 439.93 566.48
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(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
31 Cost of materials consumed

Cost of materials consumed 79,651.10 63,856.81
Total 79,651.10 63,856.81

32 Changes in inventories of finished goods,
Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress
Opening stock
Finished goods 500.56 272.84
Work-in-progress 509.15 549.12
Total (A) 1,009.71 821.96
Closing stock
Finished goods 252.03 500.56
Work-in-progress 910.62 509.15
Finished Goods- Stock in Transit 99.11 -
Total (B) 1,261.76 1,009.71
Total(A-B) (252.05) (187.75)

33 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries and wages 5,311.33 4,808.70
Contribution to provident and other funds 596.66 508.04
Staff welfare expenses 233.67 213.12

Total 6,141.66 5,529.86

34 Finance Costs
Interest on
Borrowings from banks 369.10 534.26
Others 48.03 3.11
Other costs 10.14 8.71
Unwinding of discount on provisions 5.46 4.34

Total 432.73 550.42

35 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1,773.85 1,694.19
Amortisation of intangible assets 44.85 25.43

Total 1,818.70 1,719.62
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(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
36 Other Expenses

Consumption of Stores & Spares, Tools 3,138.22 2,699.44
Power and fuel 1,977.48 1,819.96
Freight Charges 927.76 951.37
Repairs and Maintenance :
Repairs to Buildings 30.92 33.91
Repairs to Machinery 210.51 165.08
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 126.97 96.27
Rent 156.86 132.04
Wages to Contractors 1,971.07 2,070.23
Professional Charges 253.82 126.23
Insurance Premium 141.81 133.97
Payment to Auditors 16.50 12.00
Loss on property, plant and equipment sold/discarded (Net) 0.11 41.18
Rates and Taxes excluding taxes on income 25.83 20.05
Charity & Donation / CSR Expenses 78.80 67.73
Warranty Expenses 5.68 26.29
Exchange fluctuation (net) 6.55 1.55
Impairment of doubtful trade receivables 3.43 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,441.29 1,289.96

Total 10,513.61 9,687.26

(i) Payment to auditors has been classified below (Excluding Taxes)
As Auditors 13.50 12.00
For Taxation Matters 4.75 2.50
For Certification 12.00 1.50
For Other Services 9.75 1.50
For Out of pocket expenses 1.58 -
Total 41.58 17.50

(ii) Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities:
76.54 Lacs(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: (Previous Year: 82.26 Lacs)`

(b) Amount spent in cash during the year on:
(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars In Cash Yet to be Total
paid in cash

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
- - -

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 70.00 - 70.00
-(66.30) (66.30)

Amounts in bracket indicate previous year figures.
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(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
37 Tax Expense

Current tax in relation to
Current years 1,101.32 944.03
Earlier years 21.86 (114.70)

In respect of current year
Deferred Tax

(60.33) 104.18
Unused Tax Credits 231.38 -
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 1,294.23 933.51
(i) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled

to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax 5,476.02 4,350.39
Income tax expense calculated at 34.608% (2016-17: 34.608%) 1,895.14 1,505.58
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable)
in calculating taxable income
Expenses not allowed in Income Tax 56.94 13.52
Difference in tax rate from 34.608% to 34.944% (66.22) -
Exempted Income (64.60) (130.75)
Reversal of Provision of diminution of investments - (5.30)
Effect of deduction under section 80IC of the Income tax Act, 1961 (471.85) (394.98)
Prior period errors (19.57) 60.14
Tax adjustment of earlier years (35.61) (114.70)

1,294.23 933.51

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
38 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(to the extent not provided for)
(A) Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt
under the labour laws 44.12 84.82 172.06
Income Tax 6.37 75.83 51.58
Sales Tax 31.89 31.89 31.89
Excise Duty 58.76 58.76 236.56

(B) Commitments
(a) Estimatedamount of contracts remaining to beexecuted on

capital account and not provided for (Net ofAdvances) 127.06 29.14 118.01
(b) Commitment with respect to the leasehold land to bepurchased 536.84 - -
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

39 Earnings per share
Profit after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders ( in Lacs)` 4,159.03 3,455.36
Weighted average number of equity shares (in Nos.) 100,000,000 100,000,000
Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share (in )` 4.16 3.46
Face Value per equity share (in )` 2.00 2.00

The Company has allotted 50,000,000 number of fully paid Bonus Shares on July 13, 2017 in the ratio of one equity share of 2
Notes:

`
each fully paid up for every one existing equity shares of 2 fully paid up. In accordance with Ind AS 33, ‘Earning per Share’, basic`
and diluted earnings per equity share have been adjusted for bonus issue for previous year.

40 Leases
The Company has obtained land, certain premises and furniture and fittings for its business operations under operating lease or leave
and license agreements. These are generally not non-cancellable and periods range between 11-12 months and 99 years under leave
and licence and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. The Company has given refundable interest free
security deposits in accordance with the agreed terms. These refundable security deposits have been valued at amortised cost under
relevant Ind AS.
Lease payments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under “Rent” in Note 36.

41 Employee Benefits
(a) Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions to defined contribution plan are recognised as expenses when contributions become due.
The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised
in relation to these schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the period by the Company at rates specified
by the rules of those plans. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions
that were not due to be paid until after the end of the reporting period. The major defined contribution plans operated by the
Company are as below:
(i) Provident fund and Pension

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 eligible employees of the
Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees
and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary.
The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund set up as an irrevocable trust by the Company,
post contribution of amount specified under the law to Employee Provident Fund Organisation on account of employee
pension scheme.

The Company has a superannuation plan for the benefit of its employees. Employees who are members of the defined
(ii) Superannuation fund

benefit superannuation plan are entitled to benefits depending on the years of service and salary drawn.
Separate irrevocable trusts are maintained for employees covered and entitled to benefits. The Company contributes up
to 10% of the eligible employees’ salary to the trust every year. Such contributions are recognised as an expense as and
when incurred. The Company does not have any further obligation beyond this contribution.
The total expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year are as under:

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Employer’s contribution to Provident and other Funds 299.53 259.87
Employer’s contribution to Superannuation Fund 84.45 82.58
Total 383.98 342.45
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(b) Defined Benefit Plan

(i) Gratuity
In respect of Gratuity, a defined benefit plan, contributions are made to LIC’s Recognised Group Gratuity Fund Scheme.
It is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Gratuity Act, employees are entitled to specific benefit at
the time of retirement or termination of the employment on completion of five years or death while in employment. The level
of benefit provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at the time of retirement/termination age. The
most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out
as at March 31, 2018 by a member firm of the Institute ofActuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation,
and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method. Each
year, the Company reviews the level of funding in gratuity fund. The Company decides its contribution based on the results
of its annual review.
This plan typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and
salary risk.

(I) Investment Risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to the market
yields on government bonds denominated in Indian Rupees. If the actual return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create
a plan deficit. However, the risk is partially mitigated by investment in LIC managed fund.

(II) Interest Rate Risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return
on the plan’s debt investments.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
(III) Longevity Risk

both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such,
(IV) Salary Risk

an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
Amounts recognized in the Financial Statements in respect of defined benefit plan are as follows:

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Service Cost
Current Service Cost 106.39 94.14
Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement 29.98 -
Net interest expense/ (income) 15.20 24.04
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in
Employee Benefit Expenses 151.57 118.18
Re-measurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (31.79) 39.84
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustments 2.01 19.52
Return on Plan Assets excluding amount included in net interest cost (5.21) (0.51)

(34.99)Components of Re-measurement 58.85
Total 116.58 177.03
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(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity’s
obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows:
Present Value of funded defined benefit obligation 1,174.07 1,032.07
Fair value of plan assets 980.66 766.28
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 193.41 265.79
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Opening defined obligation 1,032.07 868.48
Current service cost 106.39 94.14
Interest cost 61.86 57.06

Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from changes in financial assumptions
Re-measurement (gains)/losses :

(31.79) 39.84
Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from experience adjustments 2.01 19.52
Past Service Cost 29.98 -
Benefits paid (26.45) (46.97)
Closing defined benefit obligation 1,174.07 1,032.07
Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Opening value of plan assets 766.28 513.16
Interest income 46.66 33.02
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income 5.21 0.51
Contributions by employer 187.96 266.56
Benefits paid (25.45) (46.97)
Closing defined benefit obligation 980.66 766.28

(Amount in Lacs)
Classification of Non-Current and Current Liability:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Non-Current liability 117.50 106.39 94.14
Current liability 75.91 159.40 261.18
Total 193.41 265.79 355.32

Particulars
The principal assumptions used for thepurposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016
Mortality IndianAssured IndianAssured IndianAssured

Lives Mortality Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate (2006-08) Ultimate (2006-08) Ultimate

Withdrawal Rates Upto 25 years: 10% Upto 25 years: 10% Upto 25 years: 10%
from 26 to 35 years: 7.50% from 26 to 35 years: 7.50% from 26 to 35 years: 7.50%
from 36 to 45 years: 5.00% from 36 to 45 years: 5.00% from 36 to 45 years: 5.00%
from 46 to 55 years: 2.50% from 46 to 55 years: 2.50% from 46 to 55 years: 2.50%

After 56 years: 1.00% After 56 years: 1.00% After 56 years: 1.00%
Discount Rate (%) 7.60% 7.15% 7.80%
Salary escalation rate (%) 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Rate of Return on PlanAssets (%) 7.60% 7.15% 7.80%
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(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
The fair value of theplan assets at theend of the reporting period
for each category are as follows:
100%managed by insurer (Life Insurance Corporation of India) 980.66 766.28
Fair value of Investment in Group of Insurance Company is taken as book value on reporting date.
The actual return on plan assets of gratuity during the year is (during previous year ended March 31, 2017: 33.5351.87 Lacs `
Lacs)
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and
withdrawal rates. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptionsoccurring at the endof the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

(Amount in Lacs)
Significant actuarial assumptions For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Discount Rate
- Impact due to increase of 50 basis points 1,140.92 946.05
- Impact due to decrease of 50 basis points 1,209.51 1,000.93

-
Salary increase

Impact due to increase of 50 basis points 1,208.06 1,000.22
- Impact due to decrease of 50 basis points 1,141.63 946.10

-
Withdrawal Rate

Impact due to increase of 10 percent 1,173.88 972.98
- Impact due to decrease of 10 percent 1,173.00 971.83
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it
is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Sensitivity due to mortality are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined
benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations:
Zero to Four years 46.96 66.81
Four to Ten years 306.14 236.56
Ten to Fifteen years 63.97 55.55
Fifteen and above 757.00 673.15
Accrued gratuity for left employees - -
Total 1,174.07 1,032.07

117.51 LacsThe Company expects to make a contribution of (as at March 31, 2017: 106.39 Lacs, as atApril 1, 2016: 94.14` `
Lacs) to the defined benefit plans during the next financial year.

42 Impairment of Assets
In accordance with the IndianAccounting Standard (IndAS-36)on “Impairment ofAssets” the Company has, during the year, carried out an
exercise of identifying the assets that may have been impaired in respect of cash generating unit in accordance with the said Indian
Accounting Standard. Based on the exercise, no impairment loss is required as at March 31, 2018.
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43 Segment Reporting
The Company’s operations falls under single segment namely “Manufacturing ofAuto Components”, taking into account the risks and
returns, theorganizationstructureand the internal reportingsystems.Segment revenuefrom“ManufacturingofAuto Components” represents
revenue generated from external customers which is attributable to the Company’s countryof domicile i.e. India and external customers
outside India as under:

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Revenue from:
Outside India 139.56 551.38
In India 105,507.58 92,418.02

All assets are located in the Company’s country of domicile i.e. India.
The Company’s significant revenues (more than 90%) are derived from single entity. The total revenue from such entities amounted
to (for the year ended March 31, 2017: 87,343.59 Lacs)1,00,102.52 Lacs

44

`

Related Party Disclosures:

(A) Holding Company:

(B)

Name of related parties and description of their relationships are as under:

Thakurdevi Investments Private Limited
Key Managerial Personnel:
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal Chairman and Managing Director
Mrs. Anju Munjal Whole-time Director
Mr. Anuj Munjal Whole-time Director
Mr. S. K. Sharma Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Rakesh Johari Company Secretary
Mr. Vikram Shah Independent Director
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla Independent Director
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi Independent Director
Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal Independent Director
Mr. Sudesh Kumar Duggal Independent Director
Mr. Jal Ratanshaw Patel Independent Director
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(C) Enterprise in which directors and their relatives are directors

The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in ordinary course of business during the year:
Sara Investment Private Limited

(Amount in Lacs)
Nature of Transaction Holding Company Enterprise in Key Managerial Total

which directors and personnel
their relatives are

directors
Remuneration paid - - 817.43 817.43

- - (652.22) (652.22)
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal - - 272.17 272.17

- - (209.53) (209.53)
Mrs. Anju Munjal - - 238.15 238.15

- - (190.84) (190.84)
Mr. Anuj Munjal - - 238.15 238.15

- - (189.52) (189.52)
Mr. S. K. Sharma - - 50.07 50.07

- - (45.48) (45.48)
Mr. Rakesh Johari - - 18.8918.89

- - (16.85) (16.85)
Sitting Fees paid - - 19.12 19.12

- - (18.28) (18.28)
Mr. Vikram Shah - - 4.72 4.72

- - (4.08) (4.08)
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla - - 3.40 3.40

- - (3.80) (3.80)
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi - - 3.60 3.60

- - (3.80) (3.80)
Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal - - 3.80 3.80

- - (3.40) (3.40)
Mr. Sudesh Kumar Duggal - - 2.20 2.20

- - (1.40) (1.40)
Mr. Jal Ratanshaw Patel - - 1.40 1.40

- - (1.80) (1.80)
Payments made by the 96.25 42.68 - -
Company on behalf of (5.29) (7.68) - (3.49)
Sara Investments - 30.88 - -

- (0.79) - (3.49)
Sudhir Kumar & Sons HUF - 11.80 - -

- (6.89) - -
Thakurdevi Investments Private Limited 96.25 - - 138.93

(5.29) - - (9.30)
Dividend Paid 748.06 - - 748.06

- - - -
Thakurdevi Investments Private Limited 748.06 - - 748.06

- - - -
Amounts in bracket indicate previous year figures.
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Balance as at:
(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Remunerationpayable 34.01 83.72 33.37
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal 15.93 40.58 3.08
Mrs. Anju Munjal 4.86 6.91 21.98
Mr. Anuj Munjal 9.55 32.94 5.53
Mr. S. K. Sharma 2.56 2.41 1.98
Mr. Rakesh Johari 1.11 0.88 0.80
Category-wise break up of compensation to key management personnel during the year is as follows:

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Short-term employee benefits 728.17 571.48
Post-employment benefits (excluding Leave encashment) 89.76 81.06

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
The Company has a system of physical verification of Inventory and Stores on regular intervals and of Fixed assets in a phased manner

45
46

to cover all items over a period of two years. Adjustment differences, if any, are carried out on completion of reconciliation.
47 Financial Instrument Disclosure:

(a) Capital Management
The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short
term goals of the Company, safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long term and short
term strategic investment and expansion plans. The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from operations, long
term and short term bank borrowings.
The Company monitors capital using a ratio of net debt to equity. For this purpose, net debt is defined as liabilities, comprising
interest-bearing loans less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances (including earmarked balances) and current
investments. Equity comprises all components of equity.
The table below summarises the capital, net debt and net debt to equity ratio of the Company.

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Equity share capital 2,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Other Equity 26,264.96 24,286.77 20,869.88
Total Equity (A) 28,264.96 25,286.77 21,869.88
Non-current borrowings 1,609.24 2,889.48 4,607.20
Short term borrowings 8.69 59.82 781.61
Current maturities of long termborrowings 1,258.61 1,463.97 1,607.33
Gross Debt (B) 2,876.54 4,413.27 6,996.14
Gross Debt as above 2,876.54 4,413.27 6,996.14
Less: Current investments 6,266.17 4,807.45 2,326.94
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1,467.52 104.61 229.35
Less: Other balances with bank (including earmarked balances) 104.93 95.48 126.62
Net Debt (C) (4,962.08) (594.27) 4,313.23
Net debt to equity (0.18) (0.02) 0.20
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(b) Disclosures
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on
balancesheet items that contain financial instruments.
Thedetails of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expensesare recognised in respect of each classof financial asset, financial liabilityandequity instrument are disclosed
in Note 4 (xii), (xiii) and (xiv).

The following tables presents each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31,2018, March 31, 2017 andApril 1,
(i) Financial assets and liabilities

2016.
(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

I. Financial Assets
Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
(a) Investments in mutual funds 6,266.17 4,807.45 2,326.94

Trade and other receivables
Measured at amortised cost

15,819.88 13,295.98 12,783.73
Cash and cash equivalents 1,467.52 104.61 229.35
Other bank balances 104.93 95.48 126.62
Loans 236.79 231.40 233.54
Other financial assets 7.26 10.29 9.52
Total 23,902.55 18,545.21 15,709.70

II. Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Long term borrowings 1,609.24 2,889.48 4,607.20
Short term borrowings 8.69 59.82 781.61
Trade payables 13,550.68 10,295.79 9,312.79
Other financial liabilities 2,371.40 2,902.57 2,649.50
Total 17,540.01 16,147.66 17,351.10

(ii) Fair value measurement
This noteprovides information about how the Companydetermines fair values of various financial assetsand liabilities.
Fair valuemeasurementsunder IndASare categorisedasbelowbased on thedegreetowhichthe inputs to thefair valuemeasurements
areobservable and thesignificance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in itsentirety:
• Level 1 inputs arequoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the companycan access at

measurement date;
• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, eitherdirectly or

indirectly; and
• Level 3 inputsare unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets/liabilities.

Following table gives informationabout how the fair values of the Company’s financial assets are determined:
Fair value of the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

(Amount in Lacs)
Financial assets Fair value as at Fair value

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 hierarchy
Investment in mutual funds 6,266.17 4,807.45 Level 1
Valuation technique and key input: NAV declared by respectiveAsset Management Companies.
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are
required):
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the financial statements
except fair value of investments in mutual fundsapproximate their fair values.
There have been no transfers between Level1 and Level 2 for the years ended March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 andApril 1, 2016.
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(iii) Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s principal financial liabilitiescomprises of loansand borrowings, trade andother payables. The mainpurpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’soperations.The Company’s principal financial assets include mutual funds, tradeand
other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company is exposed tomarket risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management
oversees themanagement of these risks. The seniormanagement ensures that the Company’s financial risk activitiesaregoverned
by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’spoliciesand risk objectives.The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, for speculative purposes. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which
are summarised below.

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices- such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices- will affect
(a) Market risk

theCompany’s incomeor thevalue of its holdingsof financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is tomanage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising the return. The major components of market
risk are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair valueor future cash flowsof anexposure will fluctuatebecause of changes in foreign
(I) Foreign Currency Risk

exchange rates.TheCompanyundertakestransactionsdenominated in foreigncurrencies; consequently, exposuresto exchange
rate fluctuations arise.
Thecarrying amount of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the endof the
reporting periodare as follows:

(Amount in Lacs)
Foreign Currency Exposure As At As At As At

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
Assets 17.40 248.62 216.64
Liabilities 11.06 50.56 42.84
The Company has notentered in to any forward contracts to hedge its foreign exposures and therefore there are no outstanding
forward contract at the year end (as at March 31, 2017: Nil, as atApril 1, 2016: Nil)

The Company is principally exposed to foreign currency risk against USD. Sensitivity of profit or loss arises mainly from USD
Foreign Currency Sensitivity:

denominated receivables and payables.As per management’s assessment of reasonable possible changes in the exchange
rate of +/- 5% between USD-INR currency pair, sensitivity of profit or loss only on outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items at the period end is presented below:

(Amount in Lacs)
USD sensitivity at year end For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Assets
Weakening of INR by 5% 0.87 12.43
Strengthening of INR by 5% (0.87) (12.43)

Weakening of INR by 5%
Liabilites

(0.55) (2.53)
Strengthening of INR by 5% 0.55 2.53

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
(II) Interest rate risk

in market interest rates. The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from the long term borrowings with fixed rates. The
Company’s fixed rates borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
The Company invests the surplus fund generated from operations in mutual funds. Considering these mutual funds are short
term in nature, there is no significant interest rate risk.
The Company has laid policies and guidelines including tenure of investment made to minimise impact of interest rate risk.
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(III) Price risk
The Company has deployed its surplus funds into units of mutual fund. The Company is exposed to NAV (net asset value)
price risks arising from investments in these funds. The value of these investments is impacted by movements in liquidity
and credit quality of underlying securities.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to NAV price risks at the end of the reporting period.
NAV price sensitivity analysis

If NAV prices had been 1% higher/lower:
Profit for the year ended March 31, 2018 would increase/decrease by (for the year ended March 31, 2017:62.66 Lacs
increase/decrease by 48.07 Lacs)`

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.
The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and wherever appropriate, the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and spread amongst various counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and
approved by the management of the Company. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally
consist of balance with banks, investments in mutual funds, trade receivables and loans and advances. None of the financial
instruments of the Company result in material concentrations of credit risks.
Balances with banks were not past due or impaired as at the year end. In other financial assets that are not past dues and
not impaired, there were no indication of default in repayment as at the year end.
The age analysis of trade receivables as of the balance sheet date have been considered from the due date and disclosed as
under:

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At As At

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1,2016
Within thecredit period 15,819.88 13,292.56 12,783.73
Upto 6 months past due - - -
More than 6 months past due 3.43 3.43 -
Total 15,823.31 13,295.99 12,783.73
The Company has used a practical expedient bycomputing theexpected loss allowance for financial assetsbased on historical credit
loss experience and adjustments for forward looking informations.

(c) Liquidity risk
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet the obligations when due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of liquidity
positionand cashand cashequivalents on the basis ofexpectedcash flows. In addition, liquidity management also involvesprojecting
cash flows considering level of liquid assets necessary to meet obligations by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets &
liabilities and monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios.
The following tables detail theCompany’s remaining contractualmaturity for itsnon-derivative financial liabilitieswithagreedrepayment
periods.The information included in the tables havebeendrawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilitiesbased
on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. The
contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars 1 month -1 year 1 year – 3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2018
Long term borrowings 1,258.61 1,609.24 -
Short term borrowings 8.69 - -
Trade payables 13,550.68 - -
Other financial liabilities 1,112.79 - -
Total 15,930.77 1,609.24 -
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(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars 1 month -1 year 1 year – 3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2017
Long term borrowings 1,463.97 2,764.34 125.14
Short term borrowings 59.82 - -
Trade payables 10,295.79 - -
Other financial liabilities 1,438.60 - -
Total 13,258.18 2,764.34 125.14
The following table details theCompany’sexpectedmaturity for itsnon-derivative financial assets.The information included in the table
has been drawn upbased on the undiscountedcontractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on
those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company’s
liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liabilitybasis.
IndAS 107.34, 35 B11(e)

Trade and other receivables
As at March 31, 2018

15,819.88 - -
Investments in Mutual funds 6,266.17 - -
Loans 78.29 - 158.50
Other financial assets 7.26 - -
Total 22,171.60 - 158.50
As at March 31, 2017
Trade and other receivables 13,295.98 - -
Investments in Mutual funds 4,807.45 - -
Loans 74.75 - 156.65
Other financial assets 10.29 - -
Total 18,188.47 - 156.65

66.29 LacsThe Company has access to committed credit facilities as described below, of which were unused at the end of the
reportingyear (as atMarch 31, 2017 72.78 Lacs).The Companyexpects tomeet its other obligations fromoperatingcash flows and`
proceeds of maturing financial assets.

Unsecured bank overdraft facility, reviewed annually and payable at call
(Amount in Lacs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Amount used 2,877.21 4,237.67
Amount unused 3,751.79 3,040.33
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48 First time Ind AS adoption - Reconciliation
48.1 Effect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as at March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016

(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016

(End of last period presented (Date of transition)
under Previous GAAP)

Previous Ind AS As per Previous Ind AS As per
GAAP Adjustments Ind AS GAAP Adjustments Ind AS

balance balance
sheet sheet

ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1, 2 18,502.73 (571.26) 17,931.47 17,381.58 (73.65) 17,307.93
(b) Capital work-in-progress 169.11 - 169.11 1,425.84 - 1,425.84
(c) IntangibleAssets 175.10 - 175.10 173.14 - 173.14
(d) FinancialAssets - - - - - -
(i) Loans 156.65 - 156.65 153.72 - 153.72
(e) Deferred TaxAssets (Net) 1,576.19 (130.81) 1,445.38 1,651.58 (102.02) 1,549.56
(f) Other non-current assets 1, 2 770.76 597.69 1,368.45 483.30 64.69 547.99
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 2,425.38 - 2,425.38 2,741.03 - 2,741.03
(b) FinancialAssets
(i) Investments 3 4,481.59 325.86 4,807.45 2,230.72 96.22 2,326.94
(ii) Trade receivables 13,295.98 - 13,295.98 12,783.73 - 12,783.73
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 104.61 - 104.61 229.35 - 229.35
(iv) Bank Balance other than (ii) above 95.48 - 95.48 126.62 - 126.62
(v) Loans 74.75 - 74.75 79.82 - 79.82
(vi) Other Financial assets 10.29 - 10.29 9.52 - 9.52
(c) Current TaxAssets (net) 44.55 (28.18) 16.37 23.33 (6.14) 17.19
(d) Other current assets 1, 2 706.38 39.26 745.64 977.49 15.42 992.91

Total 42,589.55 232.56 42,822.11 40,470.77 (5.48) 40,465.29
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity ShareCapital 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00
(b) Other Equity 2,3,4 24,035.60 251.17 24,286.77 20,858.94 10.94 20,869.88
Liabilities
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 2,889.48 - 2,889.48 4,607.20 - 4,607.20
(ii) Other Financial liabilities - - - - - -
(b) Provisions 4 635.55 (18.61) 616.94 644.29 (16.42) 627.87
(d) Other non-current liabilities - - - - - -
(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 10,295.79 - 10,295.79 9,312.79 - 9,312.79
(ii) Other Financial liabilities 2,902.57 - 2,902.57 2,649.50 - 2,649.50
(iii) Borrowings 59.82 - 59.82 781.61 - 781.61
(b) Other current liabilities 279.77 - 279.77 223.08 - 223.08
(c) Provisions 490.97 - 490.97 393.36 - 393.36
(d) CurrentTax Liabilities (net) - - - - - -

Total 42,589.55 232.56 42,822.11 40,470.77 (5.48) 40,465.29
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Reconciliation of total equity as on March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016

(Amount in )
Particulars Notes End of last period Date of transition

presented under
Previous GAAP

As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016
Total equity (Shareholder’s funds) under previous GAAP 24,035.60 20,858.94

Amortisation of lease rent
Adjustments:

2 - (20.74)
Impact of recognition of assets under IndAS 2 37.51 21.06
Financial assets carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 3 325.87 96.22
Impact of discounting of Warranty Provisions 4,7 18.61 16.43
Taxes on above adjustments (130.82) (102.02)
Total adjustments to equity 251.17 10.94
Total equity under Ind AS 24,286.77 20,869.88

48.3 Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017
(Amount in )

Particulars Notes Previous GAAP Ind AS Adjustments As per Ind AS
Revenue from operations 2,5 84,992.74 7,976.66 92,969.40
Other income 3 336.84 229.64 566.48
Total income 85,329.58 8,206.30 93,535.88
EXPENSES
Costof MaterialConsumed 63,856.81 - 63,856.81
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress (187.75) - (187.75)
Excise Duty 5 10.22 7,960.20 7,970.42
Employee Benefits Expense 6 5,588.71 (58.86) 5,529.85
Finance Costs 7 546.08 4.34 550.42
Depreciationand amortization expense 2 1,741.27 (21.65) 1,719.62
Other Expenses 4 9,692.85 (5.59) 9,687.26
Total expenses 81,248.19 7,878.44 89,126.63
Profit before tax 4,081.39 327.86 4,409.25
Tax expense:
(a) Current tax relating to:

- current year 944.03 - 944.03
- earlier years (114.70) - (114.70)

(b) Deferred tax 6 75.39 49.16 124.55
Profit for the year 3,176.66 278.70 3,455.36
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Re-measurementof the defined benefit plans 6 - (58.86) (58.85)
- tax impact 6 - 20.37 20.37
Total Other Comprehensive Income - (38.49) (38.48)
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,176.66 240.21 3,416.88
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48.4 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2017
(Amount in )

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2017
(End of last period presented

under Previous GAAP)
Profit as per previous GAAP 3,176.66
Adjustments:
Amortisation of lease rent 1,2 20.74
Impact of recognition of assets under IndAS 2 16.45
Financial assets carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 3 229.64
Impact of discounting of Warranty Provisions 4,7 2.17
Re-measurement ofdefined benefit plans 6 58.85
Impact of taxes on above (49.16)
Total effect of transition to IndAS 278.70
Profit as per Ind AS 3,455.36

(38.48)Re-measurement of definedbenefit plans (net of tax)
Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS 3,416.88

Explanatory notes to reconciliation are as under:
1. Reclassification of leasehold land

Under Previous GAAP, leasehold land was shown as part of Property, Plant andEquipment but were not amortised till the transition
date, whereas under IndASLease hold land are considered as operating leases and therefore are shown asprepayments.As on the
transition dateApril 1, 2016 an amount of 73.65 Lacs has been decapitalised and shown as prepayments under IndAS. Similarly`
an amount of 592.92 Lacs has been shown as prepayments as at March 31, 2017. This reclassification has no impact on equity.`

2. Prior period items
UnderPreviousGAAP, prior period items were reflectedas partof current yearexpense or income in the Statement of Profit andLoss.
Under IndAS, material priorperiod items are adjusted to the period to which they relate and incasethey relate to theperiodearlier than
periodpresented, these are adjusted against opening equity of the earliestperiod presented.Accordingly, amortisation of lease hold
land of 20.74 Lacshas beenadjustedagainst equityas on the transition date i.e.April 1, 2016 resulting in the increase inprofit before`
tax for the year ended March 31, 2017. Export incentive for MEIS scheme amounting to 21.06 Lacs is recognised and added in`
equityas on the transition date i.e.April 1, 2016. Further, for the year 2016-17,export incentive of 16.45 Lacs has been recognised`
in Revenue from Operations resulting in the increase in profit before tax for the year ended 31 March, 2017. Similarly, Exportsst

Incentive receivable under other current assetsare shown at 21.06 Lacs and 37.51 Lacs as atApril 1, 2016 and March 31,2017` `
respectively.

3. Fair Value of Investments
Under previous GAAP, Mutual Funds Investments were carried at cost and only mark to market losses were recognised in
Statement ofProfit andLoss. Under IndAS, MutualFunds Investmentsare fair valued at the period end and resulting mark to market
loss or gain is transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. Net income of 96.22Lacs has been recognised as on the transition date`
i.e. April 1, 2016 and 229.64 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2017. These adjustments have resulted in the increase in`
investments asatApril 1, 2016 and March 31,2017and increase in equityand other income as atApril 1, 2016and for the year ended
March 31, 2017 respectively.

4. Discounting of Warranty Provisions
Under previous GAAP, discounting of provisions was not required whereas under IndAS, provisions are measured at discounted
amounts, if the effect of timevalueofmoney ismaterial. The Companyhas remeasuredwarrantyprovisions at the transitiondate. This
has resulted in decrease of warranty provisions by 16.42 Lacs and 6.51Lacsas at transition date i.e.April 1, 2016 and March31,` `
2017 respectively. Theneteffect of such change is increase in equityby 16.42 Lacs asatApril 1, 2016 and increase in profit before`
tax by 2.17 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2017.`
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Excise Duty
Under Previous GAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented exclusive of excise duty. Under IndAS, revenue fromsale of
goods is presented inclusive of excise duty and the excise duty paid ispresented on the face of Statement of Profit andLoss as part
of expenses. This has resulted in an increase in total revenue and total expenses by 7,960.20 Lacs for the year ended March 31,`
2017. This reclassification has no impact on equity.

6. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans
Under Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits, re-measurement i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding
amounts included in thenet interest expense on thenetdefinedbenefit liabilityare recognised in OtherComprehensive Income instead
of in Profit before tax. Under thePreviousGAAP, these re-measurement were formingpart of Profit before tax for the year.Asa result,
Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plans amounting to 58.85 Lacs (deferred tax impact 20.37 Lacs) have been` `
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.Accordingly re-measurement loss for 2016-17 amounting to 58.85 Lacs has been`
adjusted fromEmployee Cost resulting incorresponding increase inNet Profit after tax.This reclassificationhas no impact onequity.

7. Unwinding of Warranty Provisions
Under thePrevious GAAP, discounting of provisions was not required whereas under IndAS, provisions are measured atdiscounted
amounts, if the effect of time value ofmoney is material.The unwinding ofdiscount on warrantyprovisions has been recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost i.e. 4.34 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2017.

After the balance sheet date and before approval of financials by Board of Directors, the Company has acquired 55%of shareholding in

`

49
Indutch Composites Technology Private Limited having face value of 10 each for a consideration of 521.54 Lacs. By virtue of this` `
investment, Indutch Composites Technology PrivateLimited has become a Subisidiary of the Company.

The financial statement of the Company are approved by the Board of Directors on May 28, 2018.50

As per our report of even date attached
For K. C. Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112894W

Vishal P. Doshi
Partner
Membership No. 101533

Date : May 28, 2018

S. K. Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Rakesh Johari
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 00084080

Anuj Munjal Vikram Shah
Whole Time Director Chairman Audit Committee
DIN- 02714266 DIN- 00007914

Date : May 28, 2018
Place : Waghodia, VadodaraPlace : Waghodia, Vadodara
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is theapplication ofbest managementpractices, compliancewith the law and adherence to ethical standards to achieve the
Company’s objectives aimed at enhancing the shareholder’s value and discharging social responsibilities. Our Governance process should
ensureoptimum utilisation of resources to meet the aspirations of ourstakeholder’s aspirations and expectations of oursociety.

We remained resolute in our commitment to conduct business in accordance with the highest ethical standards and the soundest corporate
governance practices. The Company strongly believes in achieving the objectives of enhanced shareholder’s value and increasedstakeholder’s
interest throughgood corporate governance.

A Report on compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and
incorporated in theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘LODR’) is given below:

1. Board of Directors

The composition of the Board of your Company is in conformity with Regulation 17(1) of LODR. The Executive Chairman of theCompany is
a Promoter and the number ofNon-Executive independent Directors is more than one-half of the total number of Directors. TheBoard reviews
and approves strategy; oversees the actions and results of management to ensure that the long term objectives of enhancing stakeholder’s
value and other stakeholder’s interest are met.

The Chairman cum Managing Director and Whole Time Directors are the Executive Directors looking after the day-to-day management of
your Company. The Chairman cum Managing Director and two Whole Time Directors belong to the Company’s promoter group. The
remaining Non-Executive Directors comprising of six independent Directors possess requisite qualifications and experience in general
corporate management, finance,banking and other allied fields which enable them tocontributeeffectively to the Company in their capacity as
Directors.

Apart from reimbursement ofexpenses incurred in the discharge of their duties and the remuneration that these Directors wouldbe entitled to
under theCompaniesAct, 2013 (‘theAct’) as Non-Executive Directors, noneof these Directors hasany other materialpecuniary relationships
or transactionswith the Company, itsPromoters, itsDirectors, its SeniorManagement which in their judgment wouldaffect their independence.
None of theDirectors,other than those belonging to thepromotergroup of the Company are inter-se related to each other.

The Senior Management of the Company have made disclosures to the Board confirming that there are no material financial and/or
commercial transactions between them and the Company which could have potential conflict of interest with the Company at large.

a. Composition of the Board

The Board comprises of 9 Directors as on 31 March 2018. The names and categories of Directors, the number of Directorships andst

Committee positions held by them in other companies are given below. None of the Executive Directors is an Independent Director in
more than 3 listed companies and none of Non-Executive Directors is an Independent Director in more than 7 listed companies. None
of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees [as specified in
Regulation 26(1) ofLODR], across all the listedentities.

b. BoardProcedure

AdetailedAgenda foldercontaining items ofbusiness to be transacted issent to eachDirector in advance of theBoardMeetingand to the
Director concerned in advance of the committee meetings.To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively, theChairman
andManagingDirectorapprises theBoardatevery meetingof theoverall performanceof theCompany, followedby itemizedpresentations
as necessary. The Board also inter alia reviews strategy and business plans, annual operating and capital expenditure budgets,
investment and exposure limits, compliance status of all laws applicable to the Company as well as steps taken by your Company to
rectify instances of non-compliances if any, reviewof major legal issues, significant labour issues, transactions pertaining to purchase/
disposal ofproperty(ies),major accounting provisionsand major writebacks/impairmentetc. and approves quarterly/half years/ annual
results,Minutes ofmeetingsof theAudit and other Committeesof the Board contain information on recruitment and leavingofofficers just
below the Board level including the Company Secretary and Compliance officer.
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c. Number of Board Meetings, Attendance of Directors at Meetings of the Board and at the Annual General Meeting

Five Board meetings were held in FY 2017-18 on May 22, 2017,August 10, 2017,November13, 2017, January 29, 2018 & March 17,
2018 in due compliancewith the stipulatedprovisions. The attendance record of members of the Board is given below

Nameof Director Numberof Board Attendance No. of No. of Committee Number of
Meeting held during at last AGM Directorship Membership held* Committee

the year 2017-18 held on Held in Chairmanship
June30, Listed Companies held*

Held Attended 2017 (excluding Private Companies, Foreign
Companies and Section 8 Companies)

Promoter
ExecutiveDirectors
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal 5 5 Yes 1 1 None
Mrs. Anju Munjal 5 5 Yes 1 None None
Mr.Anuj Munjal 5 5 Yes 1 1 None
Non Executive and
Independent Directors
Mr. Vikram Shah 5 5 Yes 1 1 1
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla 5 4 No 1 1 1
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi 5 4 Yes 3 3 1
Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal 5 5 Yes 3 4 2
Mr. Sudesh Kumar Duggal 5 5 Yes 1 None None
Mr. Jal Ratanshaw Patel 5 3 No 5 2 5

* As required by Regulation 26 of Listing Regulations, the disclosure includes memberships/chairmanships of theAudit Committee
and Stakeholders’Relationship Committee.

d. Board Evaluation
In compliance with theAct and LODR, the Independent Directors have carried out a performance reviewof the Boardas a wholeon the
followingparameters andcame to following conclusion:-
a) The size and composition (Executive, Non-executive, Independent Directors and their background in terms of knowledge, skill &

experience) of the Board is appropriate.
b) The Board conducts itself in such a manner so as to protect and take care of interestsof all shareholders.
c) The Board is active in addressing matters of strategic concerns in its review.
d) TheBoard makes well informed high-quality decisions on the basis of full informationand insights.
e) TheBoard iseffective inestablishingacorporateenvironment that wouldenable proficientandeffectivedisclosure, fiscal accountability,

high ethical standards and compliance with applicable lawand regulations.
f) TheBoard meeting time is appropriately allocated between management presentation and Board discussion.
g) The Board hasa good understanding of the Company’s key driversofperformanceand associated risks, threatsand opportunities.
h) TheBoard devotes considerable amount of time in developing the business strategy and annual business plan.
i) The Board clearly defines the mandates of its various committees.
j) TheBoard is effective in formulating and monitoring various financial andnon-financial policies and plans.
k) The Board is effective indevelopinga corporategovernance structurethatallowsand encourages the Board to fulfill its responsibilities.
l) The Boardpays considerable attention to the quality of financial statement, reportingcontrols and allied matters
m) The Board gives effective advice for achieving the Company’s mission/vision.
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e. Director seeking re-appointment
In accordance with the Section 152 of CompaniesAct, 2013, one-third of the Executive Directors retire by rotation and, if eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders. Accordingly, Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal, Director of the
Company, will retire in the ensuingAnnual General Meeting.
Inaccordance with section 196, 197 and other applicable provision of CompaniesAct, 2013 and rulesmentioned thereunder the tenure
of Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal, Chairman & Managing Director (CMD)of the Company will expire on October 28, 2018. Mr. Sudhir Kumar
Munjal, CMD being eligible offers himself for re-appointment for the period of 5 years from October29, 2018 to October 28, 2023 at the
33 Annual General Meeting subject to approval of shareholders by means of Special Resolution.rd

The Board has recommended the reappointment of Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal for tenure of 5 years and as a retiring Director.
Brief profile of Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal is provided as part of the Notice of the 33 AGM forming part of thisAnnual Report.rd

f. Code of Conduct
The Company has formulated Code of Conduct for Board Members and senior management personnel of the Company. Board
members and senior management Personnel have confirmed their compliance with Code of Conduct for the year ended 31 March,st

2018.
g. CEO/CFO Certification

In terms ofRegulation17(8) and Part -BofSchedule II ofLODR, CMDand the CFO of the Companyhave certified to the Board regarding
the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018.st

2. Remuneration to Directors
a. RemunerationPolicy

While deciding the remuneration of ExecutiveDirectors, Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers the performance of your
Company, the current trends in the industry, thequalification of the appointee(s), their experience, past performance and other relevant
factors. The Board/Committee regularly keeps track of the market trends in terms of compensation levels and practices in relevant
industries. Staying abreast withsuch informationenables review of remuneration policies.

b. Remuneration paid/payable to Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors for theyear ended March 31, 2018
Following is the remunerationpaid/payable to theExecutiveDirectors and Non-ExecutiveDirectors of the Companyduring theyearended
March 31, 2018.

(Amount in )
Name of Directors Basic Benefits, Commission Sitting Fee Total Notice

Salary Perquisites & period
and allowance (in days)

allowances
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal 1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000 - - 2,40,00,000 180
Mrs. Anju Munjal 1,05,00,000 1,05,00,000 - - 2,10,00,000 180
Mr.Anuj Munjal 1,05,00,000 1,05,00,000 - - 2,10,00,000 180
Mr. Vikram Shah - - - 4,72,000 4,72,000 -
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla - - - 3,40,000 3,40,000 -
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi - - - 3,60,000 3,60,000 -
Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal - - - 3,80,000 3,80,000 -
Mr. Sudesh Kumar Duggal - - - 2,20,000 2,20,000 -
Mr. Jal Ratanshaw Patel - - - 1,40,000 1,40,000 -

3. Risk Management
Your Company has a well-defined risk management framework in place. Further, your Company has established procedures to periodically
place before the Board, the risk assessment and minimization procedures being followed by the Company and steps taken by it to mitigate
these risks.
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4. Committees of the Board

a. Audit Committee
TheAudit Committeeof theCompanyis constituted in line with Regulation18of LODR readwithSection177of theAct &Rulesmentioned
thereunder.
TheCompany’sAudit Committee functions under the Chairmanship of Mr. Vikram Shah. FourAudit Committee meetings were held on
May 22, 2017, August 10, 2017, November 13, 2017 & January 29, 2018 in due compliance with the stipulated provisions. The
attendance record of members of theAudit Committee is given below:-

Name of Committee Members Position held No. of Meetings during FY 2017-18
Held Attended

Mr. Vikram Shah Chairman 4 4
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla Member 4 3
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi Member 4 4
Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal Member 4 4
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal Member 4 4

Mr. Vikram Shah, the Chairman of the Committee is a CharteredAccountant. The role and terms of reference of the committee covers
thematters specified under Regulation 18andPart Cof Schedule II of theLODRreadwith Section 177 of theAct. Besides having access
to all the required information from the Company, the committee can obtain external professional advice whenever required. The
Committee acts as a link between the Statutory and InternalAuditors and the Board ofDirectors of theCompany. It isauthorized to select
and establish accounting policies, review reports of the Statutory and Internal Auditors and meet with them to discuss their findings,
suggestions andother related matters.

b. Nomination & Remuneration Committee
The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to review market practices and to decide on remuneration packages
applicable to the Managing Director and Whole Time Directors of the Company.

OneNomination& RemunerationCommitteemeeting was held on May22, 2017 during theF.Y. 2017-18. The attendance recordof the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee is given below:-

Name of Director Position held No. of Meetings during the year 2017-18
Held Attended

Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi Chairman 1 1
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla Member 1 1
Mr. Vikram Shah Member 1 1
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal Member 1 1

Nomination & Remuneration Committee assists in discharging the Board’s responsibilities relating to compensation of the Company’s
Executive Directors. The Committee has overall responsibility for approving and evaluating the Executive Director’s compensation
plans.
Nomination& Remuneration Committee reviews the compensation structure for theExecutive Directors and recommendto the Board
for revision, if any, in remuneration ofExecutive Directors fromtime to timebased oncertain performance parameters,growth inbusiness
as well as profitability and in line with the practices prevailing in the industry.
The annual compensation of the ExecutiveDirectors is approved by the Nomination & RemunerationCommittee, within theparameters
approved by the Board of the Company and confirmed by the shareholders of the Company. The compensation payable to Executive
Directors and the method ofcalculationare disclosedseparately in the financial statements.
The remuneration of the Executive Directors comprises of salary, commission,perquisitesandallowances,contribution toprovidentfund
& superannuation fund and gratuity. The Executive Directors are also entitled to leave and leave encashment as per the rules of the
Company. The Non-Executive Directors arepaid sitting fees for Board /Committee meetingsand reimbursement of travelling and out of
pocket expenses for attending such meetings.
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The Company does not have any stock option scheme. None of the Directors hold any shares in the Company except Mr. Naresh
Kumar Chawla who holds 500 shares & Mrs. Anju Munjal holds 622 shares respectively as on March 31, 2018.

c. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee
TheStakeholdersRelationshipCommittee functionsunder theChairmanshipofMr.NareshKumarChawla.FourStakeholdersRelationship
Committee meetings were held during the year on May 22, 2017, August 10, 2017, November 13, 2017 & January 29, 2018. The
attendance record of members of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is given below:-

Name of Director Position held No. of Meetings during FY 2017-18
Held Attended

Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla Chairman 4 3
Mr. Vikram Shah Member 4 4
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi Member 4 4
Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal Member 4 4
Mr. Anuj Munjal Member 4 4

The committee meets as and when required, to inter alia deal with matters relating to transfer of shares and monitor redressal of
complaints from Shareholders relating to transfers, non-receipt of Balance Sheet, non-receiptof dividends declared, etc. With a view to
expediting the process of share transfers, necessary authorityhas been delegated to approve the transfers of shares.
The Company confirms that there were no share transfers lying pending as on date which were received up to 31.03.2018 and all
requests for dematerialization and re-materialization of shares as on that date were confirmed into the NSDL / CDSL system.
COMPLAINTS / REQUESTS RECEIVED AND REDRESSED DURING FY 2017-18

Nature of Complaint / Query Received Resolved Pending

1. Non receiptofdividend 192 192 -
2. Dematerializationof shares/ Transmission of shares/ Namedeletion 67 67 -
3. Letters received from SEBI / Stock Exchanges / other statutory bodies 9 9 -
4. Loss of Shares / Issue of duplicate certificates 9 9 -
5. Exchangeof NewCertificate 5 5 -
6. Miscellaneous queries 32 32 -
7. Non ReceiptofAnnual Report 19 19 -

8. Bonus Shares 3 3 -
336Total 336 -

d. Share TransferCommittee
In accordance with LODR, the Board had delegated the powers of share transfer to the Share Transfer Committee.
The ‘ShareTransferCommittee’ oversees the functioningof thesecretarial department to rendereffectiveand satisfactory services to the
investors. Themeetings ofShareTransfer Committee are held every fortnight. During the year, the Committeemet 13 times to consider
and approve the requests pertaining to the share transfers, transmission, dematerialization, rematerialisation, issue of duplicate share
certificates etc. Details of the Share Transfer Committee members are given below:

Name of Director Position held in the Committee
Mr. Vikram Shah Chairman
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal Member
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TheCommitteeexpresses satisfaction with theCompany’s performance in dealing withInvestor’s grievances and its share transfer
system.

Mr. Rakesh Johari, Company Secretary
Name & designation of Compliance Officer

e. Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) Committee
TheCommittee formulates and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and monitors and reviews the same
and determines implementation process / execution of CSR policy.
Disclosures of contentsof Corporate Social Responsibility as required under The Companies (Corporate Social ResponsibilityPolicy)
Rules, 2014 is attached as a separate annexure.

During the year, one meeting was held on May 22, 2017. The attendance record of members of the CSRCommittee is given below:-

Name of Committee Members Position held No. of Meetings during FY 2017-18
Held Attended

Mr. Vikram Shah Chairman 1 1
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla Member 1 1
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal Member 1 1
Mrs. Anju Munjal Member 1 1
Mr. Anuj Munjal Member 1 1

f. Independent Directors Meeting
During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on March 17, 2018 inter alia, to discuss:
- Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors the Board of Directors as a whole;

- Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman and Managing Director and Whole Time Directors of the Company;
- Evaluationof thequality, content and timelinesof flowof informationbetween theManagementand theBoard that is necessary for the

Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.
The details ofattendance of the Independent Directors areas follows:

Name of Committee Member Position held No. of Meetings during FY 2017-18
Held attended

Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla Member 1 1
Mr. Vikram Shah Member 1 1
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi Member 1 1

Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal Member 1 1
Mr. Sudesh Kumar Duggal Member 1 1
Mr. Jal Ratanshaw Patel Member 1 1

5. Disclosure
a. Disclosure of transactions with Related Parties

TheCompany follows the following policy in regard todisclosureof the related party transactions to theAudit Committee:
(i) Astatement in the summary form of transactions with related parties in the ordinarycourse of business is placed periodically

before theAudit Committee.
(ii) There are no material individual transactions with related parties, which are not in the normal course of business and material

individual transactions with related parties or others whichare not on arm’s length basis.
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(iii) During the financial year 2017-18, there were no materially significant transactions entered into between the Company and its
Promoter, Directors or theManagement,or relatives etc. that mayhavepotential conflictwith the interestsof theCompany at large.

b. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial Statements.
Your Company follows theguidelines ofAccounting Standards referred in Section 133 of CompaniesAct, 2013 read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

c. Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices
The Company has formulated a comprehensive Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading for its designated employees, in
compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to
time. The code lays down guidelines, which advises themon procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, whiledealing with
theshares of the Company and cautioning them of theconsequences of violations.

d. Share holder Information
1. Annual General Meeting

Date August 25,2018
Day Saturday

Time 3.00 PM
Venue RegisteredOffice of theCompany:

187, GIDCIndustrial Estate,
Waghodia - 391760, Dist.Vadodara

2. Book Closure

3.

The dates of book closure shall be fromMonday,August 20, 2018 to Saturday,August 25, 2018 (both days inclusive).

Date of Dividend Payment
The Board has recommended a final dividend @ 60% i.e. 1.20 per share for FY 2017-18.`

Thedividend recommended by the Directors for the year ended March 31, 2018, if declared at the ensuingAGM, will be paid by
September 24, 2018 to those members, whose names appear in the register of members/depository records as at the close of
business hourson Friday,August 17, 2018.

4. Financial Year of the Company

Financial reporting for the quarter ending
Financial of the Company begins from 1 April every year and ends on 31 March of subsequent year:

Jun30, 2018

st st

On or beforeAug 14, 2018
Sep30, 2018 On or before Nov 14, 2018
Dec 31, 2018 On or before Feb 14, 2019
Mar 31, 2019 On or before May 30, 2019

5. Registered Office
187, GIDCIndustrial Estate,
Waghodia 391 760, Dist:Vadodara,
Gujarat, India
Tel: +91 2668 262421-22, Fax: +912668 262427
Email: cs@munjalauto.com Website: www.munjalauto.com

6. Corporate Office
Unitech Business Zone, 2 Floor, Tower C,nd

Nirvana Country, South City-2, Sector-50, Gurugram-122018
Tel: (0124) 4057891/4057892, Tel: (0124) 4369506

mailto:cs@munjalauto.com
http://www.munjalauto.com
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7. Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchange

Listing Fees
Listing fees for the year 2018-19 has been paid to the Stock Exchanges, wherein the equity shares of the Company are listed
(i.e. BSE & NSE) within stipulated time.

Thesecurities of the Company are listed on the followingexchanges:
Listing on Stock Exchanges

Name of Stock Exchange Address
BSE Limited (BSE) Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

DalalStreet,
Mumbai - 400 001

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) ‘Exchange Plaza’, Plot No. C/1, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 051

8. Stock Code
The Company’s stock codes on the above stock exchanges are:
BSE Limited (BSE) 520059
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) MUNJALAU
The ISIN of the Company is INE 672B01032.

9. Stock Market Data
Monthlyhighand lowstock quotationsand volumesduring thefinancial year2017-18on theBSE Limited (BSE) andNationalStock
Exchangeof IndiaLimited (NSE) are given below:
SHARE PRICE DATA (NSE & BSE)

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) National Stock Exchange (NSE)
Month High ( ) Low ( ) Volume (Nos.) High ( ) Low ( ) Volume (Nos.)
April 2017 106.20 96.80 2,73,698 106.45 96.60 16,69,207
May 2017 114.25 97.90 6,56,474 114.00 98.10 30,58,889
June 2017 142.00 110.80 11,70,503 142.20 110.20 48,50,338

July 2017 153.00 63.90* 11,96,867 152.70 63.90* 44,25,037
August 2017 71.50 59.20 4,46,192 71.70 59.00 23,37,806
September 2017 74.60 64.50 9,35,622 74.35 64.35 39,02,943
October 2017 93.90 65.05 18,04,723 94.10 69.00 92,64,730
November 2017 92.20 79.00 5,37,059 92.40 78.55 26,39,166
December 2017 89.20 75.10 4,49,459 89.40 74.55 27,66,774
January 2018 97.60 82.15 8,60,200 98.35 82.55 47,00,514
February 2018 86.00 71.60 3,28,115 84.95 70.00 15,82,609
March 2018 81.00 66.15 3,08,532 80.30 66.00 13,33,491



160.00
140.00
120.00
100.00
80.00
60.00
40.00
20.00

0

40000
35000
30000
25000
20000
15000
10000
5000
0

MUNJAL AUTO V/S. BSE SENSEX MUNJAL AUTO
BSE SENSEX

160.00
140.00
120.00
100.00
80.00
60.00
40.00
20.00

0

12000

10000

8000

6000

4000

2000

0

MUNJAL AUTO V/S. NSE NIFTY MUNJAL AUTO
NSE NIFTY

78

COMPANY’S SHARE PRICE MOVEMENT VIS A VIS BSE SENSEX

COMPANY’S SHARE PRICE MOVEMENT VIS A VIS NSE NIFTY

The steep downfall in the share prices of the Company in BSE / NSE charts is mainly due to issue of Bonus shares*
by the Company in ratio 1:1 on July 13, 2017.

10. Registrar and TransferAgent (‘RTA’)
All work related to share registry, both in physical form and electronic form, is handled by the Company’s RTA, MCS Share
TransferAgent Limited. The communication address of the RTA is given hereunder:

NeelamApartments ,1 Floor, 88 - Sampatrao Colony,Above Chappanbhog Sweets,Alkapuri, Vadodara- 390 007, Gujarat
MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited

st

Tel.: +91 265 2350490/ 2314757, Fax: +91 265 2341639
E-mail: mcsltdbaroda@gmail.com

11. ShareTransfer System
All share transferand other communications regardingshare certificates, changeofaddress,dividends,etc. should be addressed
to the Company’s RTA.
Share Transfer Committee is authorised to approve transfer of shares in the physical segment. Such transfers generally take
place on fortnightly basis. All share transfers are completed within statutory time limit from the date of receipt, provided the
documents meet the stipulated requirement of statutory provisions in all respects. The Company obtains from a Practicing
Company Secretary, half yearly certificate of compliance with theshare transfer formalities as required underRegulation 40(9)of
the Listing Regulations and files a copy of thesame with the StockExchanges.
The total number of shares transferred/transmitted in physical form during the year 2017-18 was 38,250 shares.

mailto:mcsltdbaroda@gmail.com
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12. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March, 2018st

Distribution of Shareholding by number of shares held & Shareholding Pattern inpercentage pursuant to Regulation 31(1)(b) of
LODR as on March 31, 2018 are given below:

No. of Equity Shares held No. of Shareholders % No. of Shares %
Upto 500 20,121 75.37 37,11,175 3.71
501 – 1000 3,060 11.46 26,37,009 2.64

1001 –2000 1,589 5.95 25,91,315 2.59
2001 – 3000 705 2.64 18,31,439 1.83
3001 – 4000 262 0.98 9,68,557 0.97
4001 – 5000 339 1.27 16,37,747 1.64
5001 – 10000 349 1.31 26,91,603 2.69
10001 – 50000 240 0.90 48,63,165 4.86
50001 – 100000 16 0.06 12,17,575 1.22
100001 & above 15 0.06 7,78,50,415 77.85
Total 26,696 100.00 10,00,00,000 100.00

13. Shareholding Patternas on 31 March, 2018st

Category Holders (No.) No. of Equity Shares held Percentage of holding
PROMOTER HOLDING
Indianpromoters 1 7,48,06,450 74.81

Total of promoter holding 1 7,48,06,450 74.81
NON PROMOTER HOLDING
Institutional investors
- Mutual funds 5 52,511 0.05
- Banks, financial institutions 7 69,065 0.07
- Foreign Portfolio Investors 1 29,783 0.03
Others
- Private Corporate bodies 508 24,38,932 2.44
- Indian public 25,040 2,01,64,395 20.17
- NRIs 425 6,63,897 0.66
- Trust 4 7,900 0.01
- HUF 704 11,44,497 1.14
- IEPF 1 6,22,570 0.62
Total of non promoter holding 26,695 2,51,93,550 25.19
Grand total 26,696 10,00,00,000 100.00

14. Dematerialization ofShares
Equity shares of the Company, which are under compulsory dematerialization list, are available for trading under National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).As on March 31, 2018, a total of
9,80,48,830 equity shares of the Company, forming 98.05%of the total paid up equity share capital, stands dematerialized.All
requests fordematerialisationof sharesare processed within thestipulated time.

15. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrant or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion date and likely impact on equity
Notapplicable
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16. Plant Locations
Regd. Office & Unit I Unit II Unit III Unit IV
187,GIDCIndustrial Estate, Plot No.37,Sector 5 Plot No.11, Industrial Park -2 Plot No.32A,
Waghodia – 391 760 Phase II, GrowthCentre Village :Salempur, Mehdood IndustrialArea,
Dist.Vadodara,Gujarat. India Bawal – 123 501 Haridwar – 249 402 Phase II, Dharuhera,
Tel: +912668 262421-22 Dist.Rewari,State : Haryana Dist.Haridwar,Uttarakhand Dist.Haryana-122106
Fax: +912668 262427 Tel: (01284) 264434-36 Tel:(01334)235530/645256-57 Tel:(01274)243010/11/ 12/13/14

17. Address for Correspondence

Shares and Dividend
Forqueries relating to

FinancialStatements
Mr. Rakesh Johari Mr. S.K. Sharma
Company Secretary ChiefFinancialOfficer,
MunjalAuto Industries Limited, MunjalAuto IndustriesLimited
187, GIDCIndustrial Estate, Unitech Business Zone, 2 Floor, Tower C,nd

Waghodia 391 760. NirvanaCountry, South City-2,
Dist. Vadodara (Gujarat) Sector-50, Gurugram-122018
Tel: +91 2668 262421-22 Tel: (0124)4057891/4057892
Fax: +912668 262427 Fax: (0124) 4369506
E-mail: cs@munjalauto.com E-mail: sksharma@munjalauto.com

6. OtherDisclosures
a. Details of Annual General Meetings and Summary of Special Resolutions passed

Financial year Date Time Venue Summary of
(ended) Special Resolution(s) passed for
Mar 31, 2017 June 30, 2017 3.00p.m 187, GIDCIndustrial Estate, AdoptionofnewsetofArticlesofAssociation

Waghodia 391 760, of the Company in linewith theCompanies
Dist.Vadodara, Act, 2013.
Gujarat. India

Mar 31, 2016 August27,2016 3.00p.m. 187, GIDCIndustrial Estate, (1) AlterationofArticles ofAssociationof
Waghodia 391 760, the Company.

Dist.Vadodara,
Gujarat. India (2) Approval of continuation of

employment of Mr. Sudhir Kumar
Munjal as Managing Director, who
attain age of 70 years.

Mar 31, 2015 August 22,2015 3.00p.m. 187, GIDCIndustrial Estate, Revision of remuneration payable to Mr.
Waghodia 391 760, Sudhir Kumar Munjal, Chairman &

Dist.Vadodara, Managing Director, Mrs. Anju Munjal and
Gujarat. India Mr.Anuj Munjal, Whole time Directors of

the Company.

b. Postal Ballot
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 17, 2018 has passed the resolution for amendment of Memorandum of
Association of the Company which issubject to approval ofShareHolders tobe passed through PostalBallot. The Company had
dispatched thepostal ballot forphysical shareholdersandemail theNotice toshareholders registered for thesameonApril 09,2018.
Aforesaid resolution was approved by members on May 12, 2018 with assent of 99.99%.

c. Details of non compliance etc.
There hasneither beenany non-complianceofany legalprovisionofapplicable law, nor any penalty, stricture imposedby thestock
exchanges orSEBI or any other authorities, onany matter related tocapitalmarketduring the last three years.

mailto:cs@munjalauto.com
mailto:sksharma@munjalauto.com
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d.

MUNJAL AUTO
Means of Communication

The Company has regularly uploaded on onlineplatform of Stock Exchangeswithin30 minutes of closure of the Board Meeting
AnnualAudited as well as quarterly un-audited results to both the Stock Exchanges, BSE& NSE, after they are approved by the
Board of Directors.

Quarterly, half-yearly and annual results are published in prominent daily newspapers such as the Economic Times & Business
Standard. The Company also informs Stock Exchanges in a promptmanner, all pricesensitive information or such othermatters,
which in itsopinion are material& relevant for the shareholders and subsequently issues a press release on thesaid matters.

The Company’s website www.munjalauto.com contains information on the Company and its performance. Presentations to
analysts,as and whenmade, are immediately put on the website for the benefit of the shareholders and the public at large.

e. Compliance with Mandatory requirements

f.

TheCompany is fully compliantwith theapplicable mandatory regulationsof LODR.

Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has implemented a Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower policy) and is posted on the Company’s website i.e.
www.munjalauto.com.

http://www.munjalauto.com
http://www.munjalauto.com.
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To,
The Members,
MUNJAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
187,GIDC Estate, Waghodia
Dist. Vadodara, Gujarat-391760

Ref: Secretarial Audit Report dated 25 May, 2018 pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companiesth

(Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of management of theCompany. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the
contentsof thesecretarial records.Theverification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct factsare reflected in secretarial records.
We believe that the processes and the practices we followed provided reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books ofAccounts of the Company and have relied upon
the reportsofdesignated professionals including StatutoryAuditors for thepurpose.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules, regulations and happenings of
eventsetc.

5. Thecomplianceof the provisions of corporateand other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards, is the responsibility of management.
Ourexamination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. Secretarial AuditReport is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
managementhas conducted theaffairs of the Company.

For Devesh Vimal & Co.
Practising Company Secretaries

CS Devesh A. Pathak
Partner

FCS No. 4559
CP No.: 2306

Date : May 25,2018
Place : Vadodara
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CFO CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify to the Board that:

MUNJAL AUTO

(a) We have reviewed Financial Statements including the Statement of Cash Flows of Munjal Auto Industries Limited (“the Company”) for
the year ended 31 March, 2018, and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:st

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with Indian Accounting
Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

(c) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness
of Internal Control Systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such Internal Controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose
to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee:

(i) that there were no significant changes in Internal Control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) the significant changes in accounting policies made during the year pursuant to the adoption of Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
vide Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and its disclosure in the notes to the financial statements;
and

(iii) that there were no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

For Munjal Auto Industries Limited

Date : May 28,2018 S K Sharma
Place : Waghodia, Vadodara Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF
MUNJAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by MunjalAuto Industries Limited (“the Company”) for the year
ended on 31 March,2018, as stipulated in Regulations17 to27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation46(2) and paragraphs C,D and E ofSchedulest

V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations“).

2.
Management Responsibility
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility includes the design,
implementationand maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure thecompliancewith theconditionsof the Corporate Governance
stipulated in SEBIListing Regulations.

3.
Auditors Responsibility
Our responsibility is limited to examining the proceduresand implementation thereof, adopted by the Company forensuring the compliance of
theconditions of theCorporateGovernance. It isneither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statementsof theCompany.

4. Wehave examined thebooks of account and other relevant records anddocuments maintained by the Company for thepurposeof providing
reasonable assuranceon the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

5. Wehave carriedout anexamination of the relevant records of theCompany inaccordancewith theGuidanceNote onCertificationofCorporate
Governance issued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants of India (“the ICAI”), the Standards onAuditing specified under Section143(10)
of theCompaniesAct, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate andas per the Guidance Note onReports or Certificates
forSpecial Purposes issued by the ICAIwhich requires that we complywith the ethical requirements of theCodeof Ethics issued by the ICAI.

6. Wehavecompliedwith the relevantapplicable requirementsof the StandardonQualityControl (SQC) 1,QualityControl for Firms that Perform
Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information andotherAssurance and Related Services Engagements.

7.
Opinion
Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and representations
provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as
applicable during the year ended 31 March, 2018.st

8. Westate that suchcompliance is neither anassuranceas to the futureviabilityof theCompanynor the efficiencyor effectivenesswith which the
Management has conducted theaffairs of the Company.

9.
Restrictions on use
This Certificate is issued solely for thepurpose of complying with theaforesaid SEBI ListingRegulations and may not besuitable for any other
purpose.

For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 106237W

Vishal P. Doshi
Place : Waghodia, Vadodara Partner
Date : 28 May, 2018th Membership No. 101533
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MUNJAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Regd. Office: 187, GIDC Industrial Estate, Waghodia 391760, Dist. Vadodara, Gujarat

Phone : (02668) 262421-22, Fax : (02668) 262427
E-mail : cs@munjalauto.com, Website : www.munjalauto.com

CIN : L34100GJ1985PLC007958

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 33 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of MUNJAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED will be heldrd

on Saturday, the 25 August, 2018, at 3.00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at 187, GIDC Industrial Estate, Waghodia –th

391 760, Dist: Vadodara, to transact the following businesses :-

1.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on 31 March, 2018, together withst

the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon.

2. To declare a final dividend of 60% i.e. Rs. 1.20 per equity share on 10,00,00,000 equity shares of Face Value of Rs. 2/- each for financial
year 2017-18.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal (DIN 00084080) who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

4. To appoint M/s. K. C. Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants (Registration No.FRN 106237W), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for
the remaining period of four years out of their term of five years and to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting
until the conclusion of the 37 Annual General Meeting of the Company and authorise the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.”th

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. TO APPROVE RE-APPOINTMENT OF AND REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MR. SUDHIR KUMAR MUNJAL AS A MANAGING
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY

Special Resolution:To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203, Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force] and subject to the
approval of Central Government, if necessary, Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal, be and is, hereby re-appointed as Managing Director of the
Company for a period of five years w.e.f. October 29, 2018, even if he has already attained the age of 70 years, on the terms and
conditions as set out in the Draft Agreement including remuneration as approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors will have liberty to alter and/or vary the terms and conditions of the reappointment,
including the terms of his remuneration, which shall not exceed the limits specified in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or any
statutory modification(s) or reenactments thereof, as may be agreed between the Board of Directors and Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of no profit or in adequacy of profits in any financial year during the currency of his tenure, the
remuneration as aforesaid will be paid as minimum remuneration.”

6. TO APPROVE TO GRANT LOANS AND PROVIDE GUARANTEE/SECURITY IN CONNECTION WITH LOAN TAKEN OR TO
BE TAKEN BY INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED, A SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Special ResolutionTo consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 185,186 and all other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and all other rules, regulations, notifications and circulars issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs in this regard and as amended from time to time, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
grant loans to and provide guarantee/security in connection with loan taken or to be taken by Indutch Composites Technology Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘ICTPL’) not exceeding Rs. 125 Crores on the major terms and conditions as set out in the explanatory
statement annexed to the notice convening this Annual General Meeting.

mailto:cs@munjalauto.com,
http://www.munjalauto.com
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors, be and is, hereby authorized
to do all acts, deeds and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose including to delegate all or any
of the above powers to any one or more of the key managerial personnel of the Company.”

Place : Waghodia, Vadodara By Order of the Board of Directors
Date : May 28, 2018 For Munjal Auto Industries Ltd.
Registered Office: Sd/-
187, GIDC Industrial Estate, Rakesh Johari
Waghodia – 391 760 Company Secretary
Dist.: Vadodara (Gujarat) ACS 19153

1.
NOTES:

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of item No. 5 & 6 of the notice is annexed
hereto.

2. ANY MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY MAY APPOINT
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF
THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY SHOULD BE LODGED WITH THE COMPANY AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN FORTY EIGHT (48) HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING.
A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as a proxy, provided that such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person
or shareholder.

3. Members / proxies should bring duly filled attendance slips sent herewith to attend the meeting.
4. The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Person, maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available

for inspection by the members at the AGM.
5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from Monday, 20 August, 2018 to Saturday, 25 August, 2018th th

(both days inclusive) for the purpose of 33 Annual General Meeting and determining entitlement of the members to the final dividendrd

(if declared at the AGM).
6. Members whose shareholding is in the electronic mode are requested to direct change of address notifications and updates of savings

bank account details if any, to their respective Depository Participants.
7. Members are requested to address all correspondences, including dividend matters, to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent i.e.

M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, Neelam Apartments, 1 Floor, 88, Sampatrao Colony, Above Chappanbhog Sweets, Alkapuri,st

Vadodara- 390 007, Gujarat, Tel No. :(0265)2350490/2314757, Fax: (0265) 2341639, E-mail: mcsltdbaroda@gmail.com.
8. Members, who desire to seek any information pertaining to Annual accounts and operations of the Company, are requested to address

their questions / queries to the Secretary of the Company so as to reach at least seven days before the date of the Annual General
Meeting to enable the Company to make the information sought available to the best extent possible.

9. Members wishing to claim dividends, which remain unclaimed, are requested to correspond with Company Secretary, at the Company’s
Registered Office. Members are requested to note that dividends not enchased or claimed within seven years from the date of transfer
to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, will, as per Section 124 and other provisions applicable, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,
be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. Members are encouraged to utilize the electronic clearing system (ECS)
for receiving dividends.

10. Dividend for the financial year ended 31 March, 2011, which remains unpaid or unclaimed, will be due for transfer to the Investorst

Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government (‘IEPF’) this year, pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company is in process of transfer of dividend declared for the financial year 2010-11 to IEPF.

mailto:mcsltdbaroda@gmail.com.
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11. Information in respect of unclaimed dividend pertaining to the subsequent financial years when due for transfer to the said Fund is given

below:
Financial Year ended Date of Declaration of Last Date upto which claim can

Dividend be lodged for unpaid Dividend
31.03.2011 24.09.2011 23.09.2018
31.03.2012 22.09.2012 21.09.2019
31.03.2013 10.08.2013 07.08.2020
31.03.2014 08.08.2014 07.08.2021
31.03.2015 22.08.2015 21.08.2022
31.03.2016* 23.03.2016 22.03.2023
31.03.2017 30.06.2017 29.06.2024
* Interim Dividend

12.

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules of the Act, The Company is pleased to provide E-

E-Voting:

voting facility through Central Depository Services Limited as an alternative, for all members of the Company to enable them to cast their
votes electronically on the resolutions mentioned in the notice of 33 Annual General Meeting of the Company dated May 28, 2018 (therd

AGM Notice). The Company has appointed Mr. Devesh A. Pathak, Practicing Company Secretary or failing him Mr. Vimal Betai,
Practicing Company Secretary as the Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. E-voting is optional.
The E-voting rights of the shareholders/beneficial owners shall be reckoned on the equity shares held by them as on Saturday, August
18, 2018. The e-voting will commence at 9.00 a.m. on Wednesday, 22 August, 2018 and will end at 5.00 p.m. on Friday, 24 August,nd th

2018. The Members desiring to vote through electronic mode may refer to the detailed procedure on e-voting given hereinafter.

13. Details of Director seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 25 August, 2018 are providedth

in of this Notice.Annexure A

14. The Annual Report 2017-18, the Notice of the 33 AGM and instructions for e-voting along with the attendance slip and proxy form, arerd

being sent by electronic mode to members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / depository participant(s), unless
a member has requested for a physical copy of the documents. For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical
copies are being sent by the permitted mode.

15. We would like to inform you that SEBI vide their circular dated April 20, 2018 directed that the Companies / their RTA shall
preserve PAN/Bank details of the members holding shares in physical forms and if not available, the same must be obtained
from them. Accordingly, separate communication is being sent to you for the purpose.

16. The SEBI, vide its Notification dated June 08, 2018 has mandated that with effect from December 05, 2018, only Dematerialized
securities will be allowed to be transferred except for transmission or transposition of securities in all the listed companies.
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to get the same dematerialised at the earliest.

17. Pursuant to the provision of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time, all equity shares of the
Company on which dividend has not been paid or claimed for 7 consecutive years or more shall be transferred by the
Company to Investor Education and Protection Fund. The Company has also written to the concerned shareholders
intimating them their particulars of equity shares due for transfer. No claim shall lie against the Company against the
Company in respect of these equity shares after their transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund. Upon transfer,
the shareholders will be able to claim these equity shares only from Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority by
making an online application, the details of which are available at www.iepf.gov.in. The Company has already transferred
6,22,570 shares (610 shareholders) to the designated account of IEPF in the month of December, 2017 in accordance with
above Rules.These details are also available on the Company’s website www.munjalauto.com.

http://www.iepf.gov.in.
http://www.munjalauto.com.
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PROCEDURE FOR E- VOTING
A. The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on Wednesday, 22 August, 2018 (9.00 am IST) and ends on Friday, 24 August, 2018 (5.00 pm IST).nd th

During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-
off date of Saturday, August 18, 2018 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.
(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
(iv) Click on “Shareholders” tab.
(v) Now Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

(vi) Next enter the Image verification as displayed and click on Login.
(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company,

then your existing password is to be used.
(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders

as well as physical shareholders)
- Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to use

the serial number printed in address slip.
Enter the Date of Birth as registered with the DP/RTA in dd/mm/yyyy format or Enter the Dividend Bank Details
as recorded with your DP/RTA.
Please note - In respect of Physical shareholding and whose DOB and Dividend bank details are not registered
with DP/RTA should enter No. of shares held by you as on the cut-off date i.e. 18 August, 2018.

Dividend
Bank Details
or Date of
Birth (DOB) th

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members holding

shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password
in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any
other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.
(xii) Click on the for the Munjal Auto Industries Limited on which you choose to vote.EVSN 180726012
(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select

the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent
to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish

to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.
(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.
(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on

Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

http://www.evotingindia.com.
http://www.evotingindia.com
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(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app

can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your
mobile.

(xx)
·
Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

· A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

· After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance
User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

· The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts
they would be able to cast their vote.

· A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian,
if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xxi) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting
manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

B. In case of members receiving the physical copy:
(A) Please follow all steps from sl. no. (i) to sl. no. (xvii) above to cast vote.
(B) The voting period begins on 22 August, 2018, 9.00 a.m. and ends on 24 August, 2018, 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’nd th

of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Saturday, 18 August,th

2018, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
(C) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and

e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.co.in under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

C. Other Instructions:
i. The e-voting period will commence on Wednesday, 22 August, 2018 (9.00 am IST) and ends on Friday, 24 August, 2018 (5.00nd th

pm IST). During this period, Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on
18 August, 2018, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Onceth

the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, he shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.
ii. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on 18

August, 2018.
th

iii. Mr. Devesh A Pathak, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 4559),has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-voting process (including the Ballot Form received from the Members who do not have access to the e-voting
process) in a fair and transparent manner.

iv. The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding two working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period, unblock the votes
in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes
cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

v. Members who do not have access to e-voting facility may send duly completed Ballot Form (enclosed with the Annual Report)
so as to reach the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Devesh A Pathak, Practicing Company
Secretary, (Membership No. FCS 4559), at the Registered Office of the Company not later than Friday, August 24,2018 (5.00 p.m.
IST). Members have the option to request for physical copy of the Ballot Form by sending an e-mail to cs@munjalauto.com by
mentioning their Folio / DP ID and Client ID No. However, the duly completed Ballot Form should reach the Registered Office of
the Company not later than Friday, August 24,2018 (5.00 p.m. IST).
Ballot Form received after this date will be treated as invalid.
A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by Ballot. If a Member casts votes by both modes,
then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated as invalid.

vi. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.munjalauto.com and on
the website of CDSL www.evoting.cdsl.com within two days of the passing of the resolutions at the 33 AGM of the Companyrd

on August 25, 2018 and communicated to the BSE Limited and NSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

http://www.evotingindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com,
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
http://www.evotingindia.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
mailto:cs@munjalauto.com
http://www.munjalauto.com
http://www.evoting.cdsl.com
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Explanatory statement under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
Item No. 5
Having regard to the rich experience and valuable contributions of Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal to the Company, virtually since inception of the
Company, even if he has already attained the age of 70 years, the Board of Directors of your Company at its meeting held on May 28, 2018
has reappointed Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal as a Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. October 29, 2018 to October 28, 2023 for a further
period of five years pursuant to the Provisions of sections 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V of the Act on the terms and conditions as
set out in the Draft Agreement including the remuneration as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in its meeting held
on May 28, 2018.
THE IMPORTANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE DRAFT AGREEMENT OF RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. SUDHIR KUMAR
MUNJAL AS A MANAGING DIRECTOR
1. He will continue to act as a Managing Director of the Company for a further period of five years commencing from October 29, 2018

and he shall perform the duties and exercise the powers hereinafter mentioned and also all such powers which from time to time may
be assigned to or vested in him by the Board of Directors of the Company;

2. He will devote his whole time and attention during business hours to the business of the Company;
3. Whenever required by the Company, he will travel in India and elsewhere in connection with the business of the Company;
4. The Company to remunerate him in consideration of the performance of his duties as under:

a) Basic Salary : Rs. 10,00,000/- p.m. with an authority to the Board to grant such further increases from time to time as it may
deem fit, within the overall limit.

b) Commission: He shall also be entitled to remuneration by way of commission which shall not exceed 5% of the yearly net profit
of the Company, as calculated in the manner set out in section 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013;

c) Allowances:
Particulars % of Basic Salary
House Rent Allowance 60%
Medical Allowance 10%
Electricity Allowance 10%
Professional Development Allowance 10%
Education Allowance 5%
Soft Furnishing Allowance 5%

d) Perquisites:
I. Car Facility : Car facility with Driver to be used for the business of the Company;
II. Telephone : Free telephone facility at his residence to be used for the business of the Company;
III. Leave Travel Concession : For the appointee and his family once in a year incurred in accordance with any rules specified

by the Company;
IV. Personal Accident Insurance : Actual premium to be paid by the Company;
V. Insurance of Household goods : Actual premium to be paid by the Company;

e) Retiral benefits: (not to be included in the remuneration in case of absence or inadequacy of profit)
I. Company’s contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation or Annuity Fund: to the extent not taxable under the Income

Tax Act, 1961
II. Gratuity : Payable at the rate not exceeding half a month’s salary of each completed year of service
III. Leave Encashment at the end of the tenure of services of the Managing Director

For the purpose of calculating the above ceiling, perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rules, wherever applicable. In the
absence of any such rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost.

5. Earned / Privilege Leave
On full pay and allowances but not more than one month’s leave for every eleven months of service shall be allowed.
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6. He will be entitled to:

(a) the reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually and properly incurred by him in the course of the legitimate business of
the Company in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Company in force from time to time or as may be approved
by the Board of Directors; and

(b) the reimbursement of travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred by him in India and abroad exclusively on the business of
the Company in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Company in force from time to time or as approved by the Board
of Directors.

7. As long as he will function as Managing Director, no sitting fee to be paid to him for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors
or committee(s) thereof.

8. Either party shall be entitled to terminate the Agreement by giving to the other party 180 days’ notice in writing without showing any cause.”
Additional information required as per Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, relating to Item no. 5 of the Notice of Annual General
Meeting.
(I) General information:

(1) Nature of Industry:
(i) The Company is engaged in the manufacturing of Auto Component parts for two wheelers and four wheelers.
(ii) The Company’s plants for manufacturing the Auto Component parts for two wheelers and four wheelers are fully operational.

(2) Financial performance based on given indicators:
(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Effective capital 236.08 233.69
Total Income 1,060.87 935.36
Profit after Tax 41.59 34.55

(3) Foreign investments or collaborators, if any: Nil
(II) Information about the Appointee Director:

(1) Background details of the Managerial Personnel: (a) Mr.Sudhir Kumar Munjal is an Arts Graduate and having more than
49 years of rich experience in bicycle/ automobile/engineering industry. He has served as Director of Munjal Auto Industries
Limited during the period 1991 to 1993 & he assumed charge as Managing Director of the Company in 1993. During his
tenure as Managing Director, he has successfully steered the change in focus of the business of the Company from Bicycle
to Auto Components manufacturing, which resulted into turnaround of the Company in 1999-2000.

(2) Past remuneration: Details of the remuneration of Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal is set out in the Report of Corporate Governance
of this Annual Report.

(3) Recognition or awards: The Company has no information to offer.
(4) Job Profile and suitability: Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal is steering operations and Management of the Company with all attendant

responsibilities subject to the overall supervision, direction and control of the Board of Directors of the Company. Having regard
to his rich and very vast experience and contributions made so far for the Company in parity with the job profile, your Directors
are of the opinion that Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal is suitable to hold the position and proposed remuneration is reasonable.

(5) Proposed remuneration:Basic Salary Rs. 10,00,000/- p.m. along with allowance of Rs.10,00,000 and perquisites as
mentioned in the draft agreement with an authority to the Board to grant such further increases from time to time as it may
deem fit, within the overall limit.

III Other Information:
Not applicable, since the Company has adequate profits.
(1) Reasons for loss or inadequate profits: N.A.
(2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: N.A
(3) Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: N.A.
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(IV) Disclosures:
Disclosures under this sub-clause are mentioned in the Board’s Report under the heading Corporate Governance.
A copy of Draft Agreement will be available for inspection between 10.a.m. to 12 noon on all working days except Saturdays and
Sundays upto the date of Annual General Meeting

Hence your Directors recommend and seek your approval to the resolution as set out in item no.5 of the accompanying notice by way of
Special Resolution.
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal and his relatives viz. Smt. Anju Munjal
and Mr. Anuj Munjal shall be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution except to the extent of their shareholding if any.

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company at their respective meeting held on 28 May, 2018 have approved to grant loan
Item No. 6

th

to and provide guarantee/ security in connection with loan taken or to be taken by Indutch Composites Technology Private Limited (ICTPL),
a subsidiary company, not exceeding Rs. 125 Crores in aggregate for meeting their financial requirements.
In terms of the of recently amended provisions of Section 185 of the Act, the Company may advance loans to, give any guarantee or provide
any security in connection with any loan by any private company in which a director of the Company is a director or member, if it is approved
by Special Resolution and such borrowing is utilized by private company for its principal business activities only.
Since Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal and Mr. Anuj Munjal, Directors of the Company are Directors of ICPTL also, ICPTL would be a person
in whom directors of the Company are interested within the meaning of Section 185 of the Act.
Accordingly, your Directors recommend and seek your approval to the resolution as set out in the item no. 6 of the accompanying notice
by way of Special Resolution.
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal and Mr. Anuj Munjal shall be deemed
to be interested or concerned, financially or otherwise in the resolution.

Place : Waghodia, Vadodara By Order of the Board of Directors
Date : May 28, 2018 For Munjal Auto Industries Ltd.
Registered Office: Sd/-
187, GIDC Industrial Estate, Rakesh Johari
Waghodia – 391 760 Company Secretary
Dist.: Vadodara (Gujarat) ACS 19153
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Annexure A
Details under Regulation 36(3) ofSEBI (Listing Obligations andDisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in terms of Secretarial Standard
- 2, in respect of theDirectors seeking appointment/re-appointment
Name of Director Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal
DIN 00084080
Date ofBirth October 26, 1946
Brief Resume Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal served as Director of Munjal Auto Industries Limited

during the period 1991 to 1993 then he assumed charge as Managing Director of
the Company in 1993. Duringhis tenure asManagingDirector, He has successfully
steered the change in focus of the business of the Company from Bicycle toAuto
Components manufacturing, which resulted into turnaround of the Company in
1999-2000.He has alsobeenappointedas Chairmanof theCompany w.e.f.March
28, 2015. He possesses rich experience and expertise in engineering industry.

Qualification Graduate inArts
Experience and expertise in specific functional area More than49 years of rich experience in bicycle/ automobile/ engineering industry.
Terms and conditionsof re-appointment He is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuingAnnual General Meeting and being

eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. It is also proposed to reappoint himas a
Managing Director for the period of 5 years w.e.f. October 29, 2018 on the major
terms and conditions as appearing in theexplanatory statement to the itemno.5 of
accompanying notice.

Details of remuneration and remuneration last drawn Detailsare mentioned in theCorporate Governance Report
Date on which first appointed on the Board August01,1991
Details of shareholding in the Company Nil
Relationship withother Directors/Key Managerial Spouse of Mrs.Anju Munjal, Whole Time Director and father of Mr. Anuj Munjal,
Personnel (if any) Whole Time Director.
Number of Board Meetings attended during the year Detailsare mentioned in theCorporate Governance Report
Detailsof Directorships /Committee Chairmanship As detailed hereinbelow
and Memberships in other Companies

Type of Company Directorships held Committee Membership Committee Chairmanship
Private Limited Company Thakur Devi Investments Private Limited - -

Sara Investment Services Private Limited - -
Fetlock Traders Private Limited
Indutch Composites Technology Private Limited - -



MUNJAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Regd. Office: 

Phone - Fax -
187, GIDC Industrial Estate, Waghodia 391 760, Dist. Vadodara,Gujarat.

(02668) 262421-22, (02668)262427
E-mail : cs@munjalauto.com Website : www.munjalauto.com

CIN: L34100GJ1985PLC007958

ATTENDANCE SLIP

33 Annual General Meetingrd

Folio No. : _______________________ No. of Share(s) held : __________________________
DP ID* Cliend ID*
Name(s) in full Father/Husband’s Name Address as registered With the Company

1.

2.

3.

I/We hereby recordmy/our presenceat the of the Company being held atRegisteredOfficeof theCompanyat 187,33 Annual General Meetingrd

GIDC Estate, Waghodia – 391 760 Dist. Vadodara (Gujarat) on Saturday, the 25 August, 2018 at 3.00 p.m.th

Signature of the Member(s)/Proxy

1. ___________________________________

2. ___________________________________

3. ___________________________________

*Applicable for members holding share(s) in electronic form.

1.
Notes :

Amember/proxy attending themeeting must complete thisAttendance Slip andhand it over at the entranceof meeting hall.
2. Amember intending toappoint a proxy should complete theProxy Formprinted belowand deposit it at the Company’s Registered Office not

later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

mailto:cs@munjalauto.com
http://www.munjalauto.com
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PROXY FORM
FORM NO. MGT-11

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN L34100GJ1985PLC007958
Name of the Company Munjal Auto Industries Limited
Registered office & Venue of AGM 187, GIDC Industrial Estate, Waghodia, Vadodara - 391760
Date & Time of AGM
Name of the Member(s)

Saturday, August 25, 2018 at 3.00 PM

Registered Address:
E-Mail Id:
Folio No./ DP ID & Client ID

I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of Munjal Auto Industries Limited, hereby appoint
1. Name: …………..................................................................................................................................................................................…………

Address: ………..................................................................................................................................................................................…………
E-mail Id: ………..................................................................................................................................................................................…………
Signature: ……......………..................................................................................................................................................………., or failing him

2. Name: …………..................................................................................................................................................................................…………
Address: ………..................................................................................................................................................................................…………
E-mail Id: ………..................................................................................................................................................................................…………
Signature: ……......………..................................................................................................................................................………., or failing him

3. Name: …………..................................................................................................................................................................................…………
Address: ………..................................................................................................................................................................................…………
E-mail Id: ………..................................................................................................................................................................................…………
Signature: ……......………...................................................................................................................................................………...................

s my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the of the Company, to bea 33 Annual General Meetingrd

held on at theSaturday, the 25 August, 2018 at 3.00 p.m. Registered office of the Company at 187, GIDC Industrial Estate,th

Waghodia, Vadodara - 391 760
Sr.No.

and at any adjournment(s) thereof, in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
Resolutions

Ordinary Business
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 March, 2018,st

together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon.
2. To declare a final dividend of 60% i.e. Rs.1.20/- per equity share on 10,00,00,000 equity shares of Face Value

of Rs.2/- each for financial year 2017-18.
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal (DIN 00084080) who retires by rotation, and being

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
4. To appoint M/s. K.C. Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants (Registration No.FRN 106237W), as Statutory

Auditors of the Company for the remaining period of four years out of their term of five years and to hold office
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 37 Annual General Meeting ofth

the Company and authorise the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

5.
Special Business

To approve reappointment of and remuneration payable to Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal as a Managing Director
of the Company for a period of five years w.e.f. October 29,2018. (Special Resolution)

6. To approve to grant loans and provide guarantee/security in connection with loan taken or to be taken by
Indutch Composites Technology Private Limited, a Subsidiary Company.

Signed this…....................................… day of……........................., 2018
…..........................................…

…....................................…
This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than

(Special Resolution)

Signature of Member
Signature of Proxy holder(s)
Note:
48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.






